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o990

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue
foundations)

B Do not enter Social Security numbers on this form as 1t may be made public By law, the IRS
generally cannot redact the information on the form
Bk Information about Form 990 and its instructions i1s at www.IRS.gov/form990

OMB No 1545-0047

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Code (except private

A For the 2013 calendar year, or tax year beginning 09-01-2013

B Check If applicable
I_ Address change

|_ Name change

I_ Initial return

|_ Terminated

I_ Amended return

|_ Application pending

, 2013, and ending_j 08-31-2014

2013

Open to Public

Inspection

C Name of organization
American Bar Association

Doing Business As

36-0723150

D Employer identification number

Number and street (or P O box if mail i1s not delivered to street address)| Room/suite

321 N Clark St

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code
Chicago, IL 60654

F Name and address of principal officer
Jack Rives

321 N Clark St

Chicago,IL 60654

I Tax-exempt status

[~ 501(c)(3) M 501(c) (6) M (insertno) [ 4947(a)y(1)or [ 527

J Waebsite:

= www americanbar org

E Telephone number

(312)988-5000

G Gross recelpts $ 433,761,612

H(a) Is this a group return for

subordinates?

H(b) Are all subordinates

included?

[T Yes ¥ No
[~ Yes[ No

If "No," attach a list (see Instructions)

H(c) Group exemption number &

K Form of organization |7 Corporation |_ Trust |_ Association |_ Other =

L Year of formation

M State of legal domicile IL

Summary

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities
To serve equally the members of the legal profession and the public by defending liberty and delivering justice as the national
representative of the legal profession and to promote the public good Sch O

ACInmies & Govelnance

2 Check this box M If the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets

3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) 3 39
4 Number of Independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) 4 39
5 Total number of Individuals employed in calendar year 2013 (Part V, line 2a) 5 915
6 Total number of volunteers (estimate If necessary) 6 8,500
7aTotal unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 7a 3,956,704
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 34 7b 141,115
Prior Year Current Year
8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 7,430,611 7,355,372
% 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) 115,319,103 112,386,069
% 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), ines 3,4, and 7d ) 9,191,680 36,579,753
= 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), ines 5,6d, 8¢, 9c, 10c,and 11e) 8,759,214 10,259,906
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line
12) 140,700,608 166,581,100
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) 999,230 927,925
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) 0
15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines
$ 5-10) 66,239,992 68,054,339
% 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e) 0
E b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) (Y
17 Other expenses (PartIX, column (A), lines 11a-11d,11f-24e) 70,701,419 73,885,442
18 Total expenses Add lines 13-17 (must equal PartIX, column (A), line 25) 137,940,641 142,867,706
19 Revenue less expenses Subtractline 18 from line 12 2,759,967 23,713,394
wd Beginning of Current End of Year
E§ Year
33 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 329,776,848 356,575,456
EE 21 Total habilities (Part X, line 26) 152,062,417 154,669,900
=3 22 Net assets or fund balances Subtractline 21 from line 20 177,714,431 201,905,556

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of
my knowledge and belief, it Is true, correct, and complete Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which
preparer has any knowledge

’ | 2015-04-14
Sign Signature of officer Date
Here Jack Rives Executive Director
Type or prnint name and title
Pnnt/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check |_ I PTIN

- self-employed
Paid Fim's name Firm's EIN b=
Preparer
Use Only Firm's address b Phone no

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see Iinstructions)

[ Yes [v No

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

Cat No 11282Y

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 2
m Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check If Schedule O contains a response ornote to any lineinthis PartIII . . . . . &+ +v « +v o « « .

1

Briefly describe the organization’s mission

To serve equally the members of the legal profession and the public by defending liberty and delivering justice as the national representative
of the legal profession and to apply the knowledge and experience of the profession to promote the public good and to encourage cordial
discourse among the members of the Bar

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on
the prior Form 990 0r 990-EZ? . . + v & o« o« wwe e e e e e [T Yes ¥ No
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
SEIVICES? v v v e e e e e e e e e e [~ Yes [ No
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O
4 Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses Section 501(c)(3)and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, If any, for each program service reported
4a (Code ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
ABA Sections, Divisions, Forums The American Bar Association is one of the largest voluntary professional associations in the world Throughout its history, the ABA
has demonstrated an ability to anticipate the needs of the legal profession and respond to the needs of a changing society The ABA brings the resources of a large
national organization to the analysis and development of policy on issues that are of concern to both the profession and the public Much of this work Is carried out
through entities of the Association, pnmarnly Sections, Divisions and Forums Continued on Schedule O
4b (Code ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4c (Code ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O )
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expenses &

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)

10

11

12a

13

14a

15

16

17

18

19

20a

Part I11%%)

Page 3
E1a @A Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes No
Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3)or4947(a)(1) (otherthan a private foundation)? If "Yes,” No
complete Schedule A 1
Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see Iinstructions)? .3 2 Yes
Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to No
candidates for public office? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I 3
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage In lobbying activities, or have a section 501 (h)
election In effect during the tax year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I1 4
Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501 (c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule C, 5 Yes
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the
right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If "Yes,” complete N
Schedule D, Part I 6 0
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, N
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part II 7 0
Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes,” N
complete Schedule D, Part III 8 0
Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21 for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X, or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt N
negotiation services? If "Yes,"”" complete Schedule D, Part IV . 9 0
Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments,| 10 Yes
permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part
If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions Is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII,
VIII,IX, or X as applicable
Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? v
If "Yes,"” complete Schedule D, Part VI.¥& . 1la €s
Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12 that 1s 5% or more of N
Its total assets reported Iin Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VII 11b 0
Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13 that 1s 5% or more of N
Its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIII 11c 0
Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that 1s 5% or more of its total assets N
reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule D, Part IX . e e e 11d 0
Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, PartXE 11e | Yes
Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that 11f No
addresses the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Part X .
Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Parts XI and XII 12a No
Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 12b | Yes
"Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional 'E
Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(1n)? If "Yes,” complete Schedule E 13 No
Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a No
Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising,
business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments
valued at $100,000 or more? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV . 14b No
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or N
for any foreign organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV 15 0
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other N
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV . 16 0
Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part| 15 No
IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions)
Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part N
VIII, ines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I 18 0
Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If 19 No
"Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I1]
Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If "Yes,” complete Schedule H 20a No
If"Yes" to line 204, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 20b

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)

21

22

23

24a

25a

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35a

36

37

38

v

Part I

Page 4
13 @A Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or 21 Yes
government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If "Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and I]
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to individuals in the United States on 22 v
PartIX, column (A), ine 2? If "Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and II] es
Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3,4, or 5 about compensation of the organization’s v
current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If "Yes,” 23 s
complete Schedule ] .
Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000
as of the last day of the year, that was I1ssued after December 31, 20027? If "Yes,” answer lines 24b through 24d N
and complete Schedule K. If "No,” go to line 25a . . 24a 0
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c
Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" 1Issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations. Did the organization engage In an excess benefit transaction with
a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part I 25a
Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If | 25b
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I
Did the organization report any amount on Part X, ine 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current
or former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons? 26 No
If so, complete Schedule L, Part II
Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial
contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family 27 No
member of any of these persons? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part III
Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions)
A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part

28a No
A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” N
complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28b 0
An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was N
an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28c 0
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M 29 No
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified N
conservation contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M 30 0
Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes,” complete Schedule N, No

31
Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes,"” complete N
Schedule N, Part IT 32 0
Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations N
sections 301 7701-2 and 301 7701-3? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I 33 0
Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part II, III, or IV, v
and Part V, line 1 34 es
Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 35a | Yes
If 'Yes'to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled 35b | v
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 €s
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related
organization? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 36
Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that 1s not a related organization N
and that is treated as a partnership for federal iIncome tax purposes? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI 37 0
Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 197 v
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O 38 es

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 5
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check If Schedule O contains a response ornote to any lineinthisPartV... . . . + v W v w « .« .« . .

Yes No
la Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096 Enter -0- if not applicable . .| 1la 393
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a Enter-0- if not applicable ib 0

c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable
gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? . . . .+ +  « o« 4 4 a4 w e a e 1c Yes

2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and
Tax Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered
by thisreturn . . . .+ .+« .+ v e e e e e e e e e 2a 915

b Ifatleastone s reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns?

Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a I1s greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see Instructions) 2b ves
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . . . 3a Yes
b If“Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No” to /ine 3b, provide an explanation in ScheduleO . . . 3b Yes
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority

over, a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial

account)? . . . . . w e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e da No
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country

See Instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22 1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . . 5a No
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or s a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b No
c If"Yes," to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?

5c¢

6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the 6a Yes

organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?

b If"Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were not tax deductible? . . . . . . . L L oo 00 0w e e e e e e 6b Yes

7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).

a Did the organization recelve a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and 7a
services provided to the payor?
b If"Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . . 7b
c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which i1t was required to
fille Form 82822 . . . . . . . 4 4 a e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 72
d If"Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . . . . | 7d |

e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit
CONtract? . . + & & h h h h e e e e e e e e e e | 76 No

f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . . 7f

g Ifthe organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as
required? . . . 4 v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s ey T

h Ifthe organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a
Form 1098-C? . . . « « v e e e e a e e e e e e e e e 7h

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 509(a)(3) supporting organizations. Did
the supporting organization, or a donor advised fund maintained by a sponsoring organization, have excess
business holdings at any time duringtheyear? . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

a Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 49662 . . . . . . . . . . 9a
Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? . . . . . . . 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter
Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII,ine12 . . . 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club 10b
facilities
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter
a Gross income from members or shareholders . . . . . . . . . 11a
Gross Income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due orreceived fromthem) . . . . . . . . . . 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a

b If"Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the
Year . . 4 4w e e e e e e e e 12b

13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.

a Is the organization licensed to iIssue qualified health plans in more than one state?

Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O 13a
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization 1s required to maintain by the states
in which the organization is licensed to 1Issue qualified health plans 13b
c Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . . . . . . . . . . . 13c
14a Did the organization recelve any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year> . . . . . 14a No
b If"Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No,” provide an explanation in Schedule O . . 14b

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 6
m Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a

"No" response to lines 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O.
See instructions.
Check If Schedule O contains a response ornote to any lineinthisPartVI . . . . . .+ +« + +v & +« . . ¥

Section A. Governing Body and Management

la

7a

9

Yes No
Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax 1a 39
year
If there are matenial differences In voting rights among members of the governing
body, or If the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee
or similar committee, explain in Schedule O
Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are
independent . . . . .+ v v 4 4 e e e e e e e e W | 1 39
Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any
other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . . . .+ .+ .+ « « &+ 4 w44 a4 2 Yes
Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct 3 No
supervision of officers, directors or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?
Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was
1= 4 No
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? . 5 No
Did the organization have members or stockholders? . . . . . .. . .+ .+ .+ .« .+ .« .« . . 6 Yes
Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the governingbody? . . . . . . . . . . . . . .0 ... 7a Yes
Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders,| 7b No
or persons other than the governing body?
Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the
year by the following
The governing body? . . . .+ .+ & & & + « &« 4« 4 4 4 e e e a a4 4. | Ba ] Yes
Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governingbody? . . . . . . . . . . . .| 8b Yes
Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization’s mailing address? If "Yes " provide the names and addresses n Schedu/e o . . . 9 No

Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

10a
b

11a

12a

13

14
15

16a

Yes No
Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affihates? . . . . . . . . . .+ . . 10a No
If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? 10b
Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing
the form? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e e . e e e e . e w o . |11a ) Yes
Describe in Schedule O the process, iIf any, used by the organization to review this Form 990
Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,"gotoline13 . . . . . . . 12a | Yes
Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give
rseto conflicts? . . . . . . . ..o e e e e e e e e e e e 12b | Yes
Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If "Yes,” describe
in Schedule O how this was done . . . . « « & « & « 4 4 w4 e e e . J|12c] Yes
Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? . . . .. . . .+ . .+ «+ .« .+« .+ . . 13 Yes
Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? . . . . . . . . . 14 Yes
Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management offictal . . . . . . . . . . . 15a | Yes
Other officers or key employees of the organization . . . . . .+ .+ .+ + « « « &« 4« . 15b | Yes
If"Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see Instructions)
Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate In a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the year? . . . . . . . . . . e e e e e e e e 16a No

If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . . . . . . . . . . . . 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the States with which a copy of this Form 990 I1s required to be filedm

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Form 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (501(c)
(3)s only) available for public inspection Indicate how you made these available Check all that apply

[T own website [ Another's website [¥ Uponrequest [ Other (explainin Schedule 0)

Describe in Schedule O whether (and If so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of
Interest policy, and financial statements available to the public during the tax year

State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the organization
EWilllam Phelan 321 N Clark St
Chicago,IL 60654 (312)988-5000

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)

Page 7

m Compensation of Officers, Directors,Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated

Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII

i

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s

tax year

# List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount

of compensation Enter-0-1n columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid

# List all of the organization’s current key employees, If any See instructions for definition of "key employee "

# List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee or key employee)
who recelved reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, or highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

List persons In the following order individual trustees or directors, institutional trustees, officers, key employees, highest

compensated employees, and former such persons
[T Check this box If neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee

(A)

Name and Title

(B)
Average
hours per
week (list
any hours
for related

organizations
below
dotted line)

()

Position (do not check
more than one box, unless

person i1s both an officer

and a director/trustee)

o= _
23 |5 |5
22 |2 |3
2[5 |7
e =
- 5
E —
% =
T =
L
I

gedodie oy

liv}

aa w0

pamsuadiuos peabiy

FL=RIR[wH]

(D)
Reportable
compensation
from the
organization (W-
2/1099-MISC)

(E)
Reportable
compensation
from related
organizations
(W-2/1099-
MISC)

(F)
Estimated
amount of other
compensation
from the
organization and
related
organizations

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)
m Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

Page 8

(A) (B) (©) (D) (E) (F)

Name and Title Average Position (do not check Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per more than one box, unless compensation compensation amount of other
week (list person i1s both an officer from the from related compensation
any hours and a director/trustee) organization (W- | organizations (W- from the
for related o= — 2 = o T | | 2/1099-MISC) 2/1099-MISC) | organization and

organizations ag_ S |2 T 25 |2 related
below = = 2|2 o %ﬁ 3 organizations
g [m = == == i)
dotted line) (= = o |T
oa 2 ERE
- = L} [m]
=E 8] 2
2 [Z] || E
T 5 =
€ o
[}
i1b  Sub-Total >
Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A *
Total (add lines 1b and 1c) * 5,794,781 358,769
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization®20
Yes No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee
on line 1a? If "Yes,”" complete Schedule J for such individual . .+« .« « « &« « &« o &« 2 &« &« & 3 Yes
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, Is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greaterthan $150,000°? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule J for such
individual =« & 4 4w 4 4 e e s e e e w s s s ww o a e ox e w4 ] Yes
5 Did any person listed on line 1a recelve or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for
services rendered to the organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J for suchperson .+« .« « « &« &« & 5 No
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year
(R) (B) (©)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
James G Davis Corporation 12530 Parklawn DrRockville MD 20852 Construction 3,303,596
United States Postal Service, 2700 Campus Drive San Mateo CA 944979224 Shipping 2,910,000
Quad Graphics Inc, PO Box 644840 Pittsburgh PA 15264 Printing Services 2,516,647
Infocision Management Corporation, 325 Springside Dnive Akron OH 44333 Telemarketing 1,706,475
Corporate Concepts, 445 N Wells Street Surte 404 Chicago IL 60610 Office Solutions 1,371,363
2 Total number of Independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization 61

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 9
m Statement of Revenue
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII .. .. . L
(A) (B) (©) (D)
Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue
exempt business excluded from
function revenue tax under
revenue sections
512-514
@ la Federated campaigns . . 1a
2
= § b Membershipdues . . . . ib
=]
(e = |
2 £ ¢ Fundraisingevents . . . . 1c
el
E 5 d Related organizations . . . id
o=
r = e Government grants (contributions) 1e
W=
=
E - f Al other contnibutions, gifts, grants, and  1f 7,355,372
E T} similar amounts not included above
—
.'E 5 g Noncash contributions included in lines
= la-1f $
==
= = h Total. Add lines 1a-1f 7,355,372
oom -
@ Business Code
E 2a Meeting Fees 25,939,807 25,939,807
=
& b  Publication Revenue 11,253,328 11,253,328
x C Advertising Revenue 511120 3,280,137 3,280,137
=
E d Membership Dues 71,912,797 71,912,797
— e
&
= f All other program service revenue
=
& g Total. Add lines 2a-2f - 112,386,069
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, 7 992 774 7 992 774
and other similar amounts) * 1eTe 1eTe
Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds , , *
5 Royalties (3 7,837,710 7,837,710
(1) Real (n) Personal
6a Gross rents
b Less rental
expenses
¢ Rental income
or (loss)
d Net rental income or (loss) .
(1) Securities (n) Other
7a Gross amount
from sales of 296,467,491
assets other
than inventory
b Less costor
other basis and 267,180,512
sales expenses
Gain or (loss) 29,286,979
Net gain or (loss) - 29,286,979 29,286,979
8a Gross income from fundraising
L& events (not including
=5
T $
- of contributions reported on line 1c¢)
& See Part1IV, line 18
o
:. a
&
= b Less direct expenses . . . b
=1
o) c Netincome or (loss) from fundraising events . .
9a Gross income from gaming activities
See Part1IV, line 19
a
b Less direct expenses . . . b
c Netincome or (loss) from gaming activities . . .m
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances
a
b Less costofgoods sold . . b
c Netincome or (loss) from sales of iInventory . . @
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code
11a Marketing Fees 900004 538,530 538,530
b OtherIncome 900099 1,883,666 1,745,629 138,037
c
d All other revenue
e Total.Addlines 11a-11d -
2,422,196
12  Total revenue. See Instructions -
166,581,100 110,851,561 3,956,704 44,417,463

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 10

m Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3)and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns All other organizations must complete column (A)
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX . .. L

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, (A) PrOgraS‘nB)SerVICG Manage(r(1:1)ent and Funég)lsmg

7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. Total expenses expenses general expenses expenses

1 Grants and other assistance to governments and organizations
In the United States See PartIV, line 21 799,117
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in the
United States See PartIV,line 22 128,808
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outside the United
States See PartIV, lines 15 and 16 0
Benefits paid to or for members 0
5 Compensation of current officers, directors, trustees, and
key employees 4,563,641
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified persons
(as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and persons
described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) . 0
7 Other salaries and wages 48,451,083
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include section 401 (k)
and 403(b) employer contributions) 4,062,904
9 Other employee benefits 7,642,837
10 Payroll taxes 3,333,874
11 Fees for services (non-employees)
a Management 443,006
b Legal 703,541
¢ Accounting 261,003
d Lobbying 1,124,798
e Professional fundraising services See Part IV, line 17
f Investment management fees 0
g Other (Ifine 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25,
column (A) amount, list line 11g expenses on
Schedule O) 4,736,035
12 Advertising and promotion 11,182,400
13 Office expenses 8,377,400
14 Information technology 2,168,524
15 Rovyalties 1,559,696
16 Occupancy 4,659,387
17 Travel 9,338,042
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses for any federal,
state, or local public officials 0
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 19,911,875
20 Interest 3
21 Payments to affiliates 0
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 2,786,539
23 Insurance 252,276
24 Other expenses Itemize expenses not covered above (List
miscellaneous expenses In line 24e Ifline 24e amount exceeds 10%
of ine 25, column (A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O )
a Tax 1,875,672
b Utilities 145,988
c Miscellaneous O perating 890,503
d Interfund Transfers 3,468,754
e All other expenses 0
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 142,867,706
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only If the organization

reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation Check
here ® [ if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)

Page 11

Balance Sheet

Check iIf Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X .. '
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-non-interest-bearing 1,803,964 1 12,492,512
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 22,325,025 2 37,486
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 3
4 Accounts recelvable, net 7,152,577 4 5,154,714
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors, trustees, key
employees, and highest compensated employees Complete Part II of
Schedule L
5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees’
" beneficiary organizations (see instructions) Complete Part II of Schedule L
o 6
ﬂ 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
< 8 Inventories for sale or use 3,659,980| 8 3,945,622
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 3,743,993 9 3,198,738
10a Land, buildings, and equipment cost or other basis
Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 69,772,137
b Less accumulated depreciation 10b 52,157,755 19,730,879 10c 17,614,382
11 Investments—publicly traded securities 270,929,357| 11 313,877,474
12 Investments—other securities See Part IV, line 11 12
13 Investments—program-related See Part IV, line 11 13
14 Intangible assets 14
15 Other assets See PartIV,line 11 431,073| 15 254,528
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34) 329,776,848| 16 356,575,456
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 10,336,486| 17 7,783,793
18 Grants payable 18
19 Deferred revenue 55,984,373| 19 52,780,399
20 Tax-exempt bond habilities 20
w 21 Escrow or custodial account hability Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
:E 22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees,
= key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified
ﬁ persons Complete Part II of Schedule L 22
= 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 79,063| 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal Income tax, payables to related third parties,
and other habilities not included on lines 17-24) Complete Part X of Schedule
D e e e e sy o 85,662,495 25 94,105,708
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 152,062,417| 26 154,669,900
" Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here & [ and complete
E lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
% 27 Unrestricted net assets 177,714,431 27 201,905,556
E 28 Temporarily restricted net assets 28
E 29 Permanently restricted net assets 29
u:. Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here » [ and
= complete lines 30 through 34.
- 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 30
E 31 Paid-1n or capital surplus, or land, building or equipment fund 31
.»;':|:"1I 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
0 33 Total net assets or fund balances 177,714,431 33 201,905,556
= 34 Total lhabilities and net assets/fund balances 329,776,848| 34 356,575,456

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 12
lm Reconcilliation of Net Assets
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI v
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12)
1 166,581,100
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)
2 142,867,706
3 Revenue less expenses Subtractline 2 from line 1
3 23,713,394
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A))
4 177,714,431
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments
5 11,550,462
6 Donated services and use of facilities
6
7 Investment expenses
7
8 Prior period adjustments
8
9 Otherchanges in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule 0)
9 -11,072,731
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 33,
column (B)) 10 201,905,556
Financial Statements and Reporting
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII .
Yes No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990 [T Cash [ Accrual [ Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explainin
Schedule O
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a No
If 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on
a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both
[ Separate basis [ Consolidated basis [~ Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2b Yes
If‘Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate
basis, consolidated basis, or both
[ Separate basis [v" Consolidated basis [~ Both consolidated and separate basis
c If"Yes," to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the
audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c Yes
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1337 3a No
b If"Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the 3b
required audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits

Form 990 (2013)
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SCHEDULE C Political Campaign and Lobbying Activities
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) For Organizations Exempt From Income Tax Under section 501(c) and section 527
= Complete if the organization is described below. I Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
I See separate instructions.  Information about Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its
instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990.

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

OMB No 1545-0047

Open to Public
Inspection

If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, Line 3, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 46 (Political Cam paign Activities), then

# Section 501(c)(3) organizations Complete Parts FA and B Do not complete Part I-C

# Section 501(c) (other than section 501(c)(3)) organizations Complete Parts I-A and C below Do not complete Part |-B

# Section 527 organizations Complete Part I-A only

If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, Line 4, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 47 (Lobbying Activities), then

# Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)) Complete Part IFA Do not complete Part II-B

# Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have NOT filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)) Complete Part IFB Do not complete Part IIF-A
If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, Line 5 (Proxy Tax) or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 35c (Proxy Tax), then

# Section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) organizations Complete Part Il

Name of the organization
American Bar Association

36-0723150

Employer identification number

m Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c) or is a section 527 organization.

1 Provide a description of the organization’s direct and indirect political campaign activities in Part IV

2 Political expenditures L3

3  Volunteer hours

-ladd:] Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3).

1 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by the organization under section 4955 L3
2 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by organization managers under section 4955 L3
3 If the organization incurred a section 4955 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year? [~ Yes [~ No
4a Was a correction made? [T Yes [ No
b If"Yes," describe inPartIV
Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c), except section 501(c)(3).
1 Enter the amount directly expended by the filing organization for section 527 exempt function activities
2 Enter the amount of the filing organization's funds contributed to other organizations for section 527
exempt function activities L3
3 Total exempt function expenditures Addlines 1 and 2 Enter here and on Form 1120-POL, ine 17b L3
Did the filing organization file Form 1120-POL for this year? [~ Yes ™ No

5 Enter the names, addresses and employer identification number (EIN) of all section 527 political organizations to which the filing
organization made payments For each organization listed, enter the amount paid from the filing organization’s funds Also enter the
amount of political contributions received that were promptly and directly delivered to a separate political organization, such as a
separate segregated fund or a political action committee (PAC) If additional space I1s needed, provide information in Part IV

(b) Address (c) EIN (d) Amount paid from
filing organization's

funds If none, enter-0-

(a) Name

(e) Amount of political
contributions received
and promptly and
directly delivered to a
separate political
organization If none,
enter -0-

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

Cat No 50084S Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013

Page 2

m Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and filed Form 5768 (election

under section 501(h)).

A Check m[ Ifthe filing organization belongs to an affiliated group (and list in Part IV each affiliated group member's name, address, EIN,

expenses, and share of excess lobbying expenditures)
B Check M| ifthe filing organization checked box A and "limited control" provisions apply

Limits on Lobbying Expendit_ure; or(_;(aazé;ltlrogn's (b) :rfg'llj'stEd
(The term "expenditures” means amounts paid or incurred.) totals totals
la Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion (grass roots lobbying)
b Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body (direct lobbying)
c Total lobbying expenditures (add lines 1a and 1b)
d Other exempt purpose expenditures
e Total exempt purpose expenditures (add lines 1c and 1d)
f Lobbying nontaxable amount Enter the amount from the following table in both
columns
If the amount on line le, column (a) or (b) is: The lobbying nontaxable amount is:
Not over $500,000 20% of the amount on line 1le
Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 $100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $500,000
Over $1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 $175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000,000
Over $1,500,000 but not over $17,000,000 $225,000 plus 5% of the excess over $1,500,000
Over $17,000,000 $1,000,000
Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line 1f)
h Subtractline 1g from line 1a If zero orless, enter-0-
i Subtractline 1ffrom line 1¢c If zero or less, enter -0-
j Ifthere 1s an amount other than zero on either line 1h or line 11, did the organization file Form 4720 reporting
section 4911 tax for this year? [~ Yes [~ No

4-Year Averaging Period Under Section 50

1(h)

(Some organizations that made a section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five
columns below. See the instructions for lines 2a through 2f on page 4.)

Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period

Calendar year (or fiscal year

beginning in) (a) 2010 (b) 2011

(c) 2012

(d) 2013

(e) Total

2a Lobbying nontaxable amount

b Lobbying ceiling amount
(150% of line 2a, column(e))

c Total lobbying expenditures

d Grassroots nontaxable amount

e Grassroots ceiling amount
(150% of ine 2d, column (e))

f Grassroots lobbying expenditures

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013 Page 3
(- 1aeg]:} Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and has NOT
filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)).
a b
For each "Yes" response to lines 1a through 11 below, provide in Part IV a detailed description of the lobbying (a) (b)
activity. Yes No Amount
1 During the year, did the filing organization attempt to influence foreign, national, state or local

TQ "0 Q6 T o

i
2a
b
c
d

legislation, including any attempt to influence public opinion on a legislative matter or referendum,
through the use of

Volunteers?

Paid staff or management (include compensation in expenses reported on lines 1¢ through 11)?
Media advertisements?

Mailings to members, legislators, or the public?

Publications, or published or broadcast statements?

Grants to other organizations for lobbying purposes?

Direct contact with legislators, their staffs, government officials, or a legislative body?
Rallies, demonstrations, seminars, conventions, speeches, lectures, or any similar means?
Other activities?

Total Add lines 1c through 11

Did the activities in line 1 cause the organization to be not described Iin section 501(c)(3)?
If "Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred under section 4912

If "Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred by organization managers under section 4912
If the filing organization incurred a section 4912 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year?

m Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section

501(c)(6).

1
2
3

Were substantially all (90% or more) dues received nondeductible by members?
Did the organization make only In-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 or less?
Did the organization agree to carry over lobbying and political expenditures from the prior year?

Yes | No
1 No
2 No
3 No

-1adeegd:] Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section
501(c)(6) and if either (a) BOTH Part III-A, lines 1 and 2, are answered "No" OR (b) Part III-A,

line 3, is answered “Yes."”

5

Dues, assessments and similar amounts from members

Section 162(e) nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures (do not include amounts of political
expenses for which the section 527(f) tax was paid).

Current year

Carryover from last year

Total

Aggregate amount reported in section 6033(e)(1)(A) notices of nondeductible section 162(e) dues

If notices were sent and the amount on line 2c exceeds the amount on line 3, what portion of the excess
does the organization agree to carryover to the reasonable estimate of nondeductible lobbying and
political expenditure next year?

Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (see Iinstructions)

1 71,912,797
2a 1,124,798
2b

2c 1,124,798
3 1,797,820
a4

5 -673,022

Part IV Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part I-A, line 1, Part |I-B, ine 4, Part|-C, line 5, Part I1-A (affiliated group list), Part II-A, line 2, and
PartIl-B, ine 1 Also, complete this part for any additional information

Return Reference Explanation

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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Part IV Supplemental Information (continued)

Return Reference

Explanation

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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SCHEDULE D
(Form 990)

OMB No 1545-0047

Supplemental Financial Statements

k= Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, 20 1 3
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b

Department of the Treasury k- Attach to Form 990. - See separate instructions. * Information about Schedule D (Form 990) e sI-1 [ Lol {111 e
Intemal Revenue Service and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

American Bar Association

36-0723150

m Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete If the

organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

1
2
3
4
5

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year

Aggregate contributions to (during year)

Aggregate grants from (during year)

Aggregate value at end of year

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors In writing that the assets held in donor advised
funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? [~ Yes ™ No

Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors 1n writing that grant funds can be
used only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring iImpermissible private benefit? [~ Yes ™ No

m Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

a 0N T o

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply)
[T Preservation of land for public use (e g, recreation or education) [ Preservation of an historically important land area
[T Protection of natural habitat [T Preservation of a certified historic structure

[~ Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d iIf the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation
easement on the last day of the tax year

Held at the End of the Year

Total number of conservation easements 2a
Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b
Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) 2c

Number of conservation easements included in (¢) acquired after 8/17/06, and noton a
historic structure listed in the National Register 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during

the tax year &

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement 1s located &

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations, and
enforcement of the conservation easements 1t holds? [~ Yes [~ No

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
[

Amount of expenses Incurred In monitoring, Inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
L

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4 )(B)(1)
and section 170(h)(4 )(B)(11)? [ Yes [ No

In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements In its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, If applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes
the organization’s accounting for conservation easements

m Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, line 8.

la

b

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report In its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide, in Part XIII, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide the following amounts relating to these items

() Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, ine 1 3

(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X L]

If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items

Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 3

Assets Included in Form 990, Part X 3

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 52283D Schedule D (Form 990) 2013



Schedule D (Form 990) 2013 Page 2
Manizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply)

a [~ Ppublic exhibition d [T Loan or exchange programs

b [ Scholarly research e [ Other

c l_ Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose In

Part XIII
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? [T Yes [ No

i-14®A"A Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,
Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

la Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not

included on Form 990, Part X? [ Yes [ No
b If"Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table
Amount
€ Beginning balance 1c
d  Additions during the year id
€ Distributions during the year le
f  Ending balance 1f
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 217 [~ Yes ¥ No
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII Check here If the explanation has been provided in Part XIII . . . . . . . . I_
Endowment Funds. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a)Current year (b)Prior year b (c)Two years back |(d)Three years back| (e)Four years back
la Beginning of year balance . . . . 10,599,851 9,728,735 8,837,086
b Contributions . . . . . . . . 9,500 2,000 162,067
c Netinvestment earnings, gains, and losses 1,443,145 923,250 819 572
d Grants or scholarships
e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs
f Administrative expenses . . . . 125,838 54,134 89,990
g End ofyearbalance . . . . . . 11,926,658 10,599,851 9,728,735
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as
a Board designated or quasi-endowment 14 000 %
b Permanent endowment & 58 000 %
€ Temporarily restricted endowment & 28 000 %
The percentages In lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢c should equal 100%
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by Yes | No
(i) unrelated organizations . . . . .+ . 4 4 4 44w e e e e e w e ] 3a(d No
(ii) related organizations . . . . . 4 4 e e e e e e e e e . a | 3af(i) | Yes
b If"Yes" to 3a(n), are the related organizations listed as required on ScheduleR? . . . . . . . . . 3b Yes

4 Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds

m Land, Buildings, and Equipment. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line
11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other | (b)Cost or other | (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (investment) basis (other) depreciation

la Land
b Buildings
c Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . 23,886,805 13,303,153 10,583,652
d Equipment . . . . .« v e e e e e 45,760,497 38,854,602 6,905,895
e Other . . . . .« .+ v v a0 a e e 124,835 124,835
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10(c).) . . . . . . . » 17,614,382

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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Page 3

m Investments—Other Securities. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11b.

See Form 990, Part X, ne 12.

(a) Description of security or category
(including name of security)

(b)Book value

(c) Method of valuation
Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)Financial derivatives

(2)Closely-held equity Interests

(3)Other
(A) Financial derivatives and other financial products

(B) Closely-held equity interests

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) lne 12 )

-

Investments—Program Related. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11c.

See Form 990, Part X, line 13,

(a) Description of Investment

(b) Book value

(c) Method of valuation
Cost or end-of-year market value

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) line 13)

-

Other Assets. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11d See Form 990, Part X, line 15

(a) Description

(b) Book value

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col.(B) line 15.)

.k

Other Liabilities. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See

Form 990, Part X, line 25.

1 (a) Description of liability

(b) Book value

Federal iIncome taxes

Federal iIncome taxes

Deferred Rent 21,191,308
Pension Liability 63,768,233
Other Liabilities 8,831,700
Due to Related Parties 314,467
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) Ine 25) m 94,105,708

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that
reports the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740) Check here If the text of the footnote has been

provided in Part XIII

~

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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m Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return Complete If
the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part 1V, line 12a.

Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . . . . . . . 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12
a Net unrealized gains on investments . . . . . . . . . . 2a
b Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . 2b
c Recoveries of prioryeargrants . . . . . . . . . . . 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIII') . . . .. .+ .+ .+« .+ .« « .+ . 2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d P e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 2e
3 Subtract ine 2efromlinel . . . . .+ & . .« 4w aa e e e 3
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, ine 12, but noton line 1
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, ine 7b . 4a
Other (Describe in Part XIII') . . . .. .+ . .+ . .+ . . 4b
c Addlines4aandd4b . . . . . . . . .0 . 00w e e e e e e 4c
5 Total revenue Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, PartI,linel12) . . . . 5

m Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return. Complete
if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements . . . . . . . . . . . 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25
a Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . 2a
b Prior year adjustments . . . . . . . .+ . .+ . . . . 2b
c Otherlosses . . .+ « v « &« v 4 4w e a . 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIII') . . . .. .+ .+ .+« .+ .« « .+ . 2d
e Add lines 2athrough2d . . . . . . . .+ . + + & 4 4w e e e e e 2e
3 Subtract ine2efromlinel . . . . .« .+ &+ 4 4 4w e e 3
4 Amounts included on Form 990, PartIX, line 25, but not on line 1:
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, ine7b . . 4a
Other (Describe in Part XIII') . . . .. .+ .+ .+« .+ .« « .+ . 4b
c Addlines4aandd4b . . . . . . . . .0 . 00w e e e e e e 4c
Total expenses Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, PartI,line18) . . . . . . 5

m Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, ines 3,5, and 9, Part III, lines 1a and 4, Part IV, lines 1b and 2b,
PartV, line 4, Part X, line 2, Part XI, lines 2d and 4b, and Part XII, ines 2d and 4b Also complete this part to provide any additional
information

Return Reference Explanation

V 4 The endowment funds are held by a tax-exempt related organization, ABA Fund for Justice and
Education FJE ABA uses the proceeds from the endowment funds to provide a predictable stream of
funding for ABA programs

X 2 The ABA and FJE are qualified underthe US Internal Revenue Code Code as tax-exempt
organizations or, In the case of FJE, as a tax-exempt fund, and are exempt from tax on income related
to their tax-exempt purposes under Section 501a of the Code The ABA Is exempt from income tax as
an assoclation described in Section 501c6 of the Code FJE I1s exempt under Section 501¢3

X FJE and other organizations do not have any material unrelated business income Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes has been made in the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal years
ended August 31,2014 and 2013

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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m Supplemental Information (continued)

Return Reference

Explanation

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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Schedule I . . . OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 990) Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations,
Governments and Individuals in the United States 201 3
Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Internal Revenue Service P Information about Schedule I (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

American Bar Association
36-0723150

m General Information on Grants and Assistance

1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants orassistance?. . . . . . . . . - s e e e e e e e e e e e e e ¥ Yes ™ No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds n the Unlted States

m Grants and Other Assistance to Governments and Organizations in the United States. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to
Form 990, Part 1V, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part II can be duplicated if additional space 1s needed.

(a) Name and address of (b) EIN (c) IRC Code section | (d) Amount of cash (e) Amount of non- (f) Method of (g) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
organization If applicable grant cash valuation non-cash assistance | orassistance
or government assistance (book, FMV, appraisal,
other)

(1) National Women's Law 52-1213010 501c¢3 67,620

Center

11 Dupont Circle NW Suite

800

Washington,DC 200361207

(2) Center for Economic 36-3693728 501c¢3 64,227

Progress

29 E Madison St Suite 900
Chicago,IL 60602

(3) Senior Law Center 23-2169936 501c¢3 51,986
100 South Broad Street Suite
1820

Philadelphia,PA 19110

(4) University of Washington 23-7066063 501c¢3 35,261
School of Law

Box 353020
Seattle, WA 98145

(5) Northwestern University 36-2167817 501c¢3 31,996
School of Law

357 East Chicago
Chicago,IL 60611

(6) Neighborhood Christian 35-1916572 501c¢3 29,958
Legal Chinic

3333 N Mernidian St
Indianapolis,IN 46208

(7) Nat'l Conf of 36-3761561 501c¢3 26,250
Commissioners on Uniform
State Law

111 N Wabash Ave Ste 1010
Chicago,IL 60602

(8) AIPLEF 54-2019670 501c3 17,500
241 18th Street South
Arlington,VA 22201

2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1 table. . . . . . .+ . .+ .+ .« .+« .+ .+« . . [ 8

3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthelinel table. . . . . .+ .+ + .+ +« « o & & & 4 4w e e a e e ..

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50055P Schedule I (Form 990) 2013
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Page 2
m Grants and Other Assistance to Individuals in the United States. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 22.
Part III can be duplicated If additional space Is needed.
(a)Type of grant or assistance (b)Number of (c)Amount of (d)Amount of (e)Method of valuation (book,| (f)Description of non-cash assistance
recipients cash grant non-cash assistance FMV, appraisal, other)
(1) Scholarships/Awards 116 128,808

Part IV Supplemental Information. Provide the information required in Part I, line 2, Part I1I, column (b), and any other additional information.
Return Reference Explanation

PartI Line 2 The ABA has recipient monitoring procedures In place to ensure adequate control of funds that are awarded These procedures include the review of
grantee financial and narrative reports, periodic on-site monitoring of grantee programs and financial operation, review of cash management procedures
to minimize the cash on hand by recipients, and the review and appropriate follow-up on recipient audits including any deficiencies noted

PartI Line 2 Grant recipients typically are selected in consultation with the funding agency

PartI Line 2

The majority of the scholarships are paid directly to the colleges and universities that the award winners are attending The remaining awards are paid
as stipends to under-represented law students pursuing unpaid clerkships with judges The stipends for clerkships are taxable to the grantee

Schedule I (Form 990) 2013



Additional Data

Software ID:
Software Version:
EIN:

Name:

13000230
13.6.0.0
36-0723150

American Bar Association

Form 990,Schedule I, Part II, Grants and Other Assistance to Governments and Organizations in the United States

(f) Method of

(g) Description of

(h) Purpose of grant

(a) Name and address of (b) EIN (c) IRC Code section | (d) Amount of cash (e) Amount of non-
organization If applicable grant cash valuation non-cash assistance | orassistance
or government assistance (book, FMV, appraisal,
other)
National Women's Law 52-1213010 501c¢3 67,620

Center

11 Dupont Circle NW Suite

800
Washington,DC
200361207




Form 990,Schedule I, Part II, Grants and Other Assistance to Governments and Organizations in the United States

(a) Name and address of (b) EIN (c) IRC Code section | (d) Amount of cash (e) Amount of non- (f) Method of (g) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
organization If applicable grant cash valuation non-cash assistance | orassistance
or government assistance (book, FMV, appraisal,
other)
Center for Economic 36-3693728 501c3 64,227

Progress

29 E Madison St Suite 900

Chicago,IL 60602




Form 990,Schedule I, Part II, Grants and Other Assistance to Governments and Organizations in the United States

(a) Name and address of (b) EIN (c) IRC Code section | (d) Amount of cash (e) Amount of non- (f) Method of (g) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
organization If applicable grant cash valuation non-cash assistance | orassistance
or government assistance (book, FMV, appraisal,
other)
Senior Law Center 23-2169936 501c3 51,986
100 South Broad Street Suite
1820
Philadelphia,PA 19110




Form 990,Schedule I, Part II, Grants and Other Assistance to Governments and Organizations in the United States

(a) Name and address of (b) EIN (c) IRC Code section | (d) Amount of cash (e) Amount of non- (f) Method of (g) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
organization If applicable grant cash valuation non-cash assistance | orassistance
or government assistance (book, FMV, appraisal,
other)
University of Washington 23-7066063 501c3 35,261
School of Law
Box 353020
Seattle, WA 98145




Form 990,Schedule I, Part II, Grants and Other Assistance to Governments and Organizations in the United States

(a) Name and address of (b) EIN (c) IRC Code section | (d) Amount of cash (e) Amount of non- (f) Method of (g) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
organization If applicable grant cash valuation non-cash assistance | or assistance
or government assistance (book, FMV, appraisal,
other)
Northwestern University 36-2167817 501c3 31,996
School of Law
357 East Chicago
Chicago,IL 60611




Form 990,Schedule I, Part II, Grants and Other Assistance to Governments and Organizations in the United States

(g) Description of

(h) Purpose of grant

(a) Name and address of (b) EIN (c) IRC Code section | (d) Amount of cash (e) Amount of non- (f) Method of
organization If applicable grant cash valuation non-cash assistance | or assistance
or government assistance (book, FMV, appraisal,
other)
Neighborhood Christian Legal 35-1916572 501c¢3 29,958

Chinic
3333 N Meridian St

Indianapolis,IN 46208




Form 990,Schedule I, Part II, Grants and Other Assistance to Governments and Organizations in the United States

(g) Description of

(h) Purpose of grant

(a) Name and address of (b) EIN (c) IRC Code section | (d) Amount of cash (e) Amount of non- (f) Method of
organization If applicable grant cash valuation non-cash assistance | orassistance
or government assistance (book, FMV, appraisal,
other)
Nat'l Conf of Commissioners 36-3761561 501c¢3 26,250

on Uniform State Law
111 N Wabash Ave Ste 1010
Chicago,IL 60602




Form 990,Schedule I, Part II, Grants and Other Assistance to Governments and Organizations in the United States

(a) Name and address of (b) EIN (c) IRC Code section | (d) Amount of cash (e) Amount of non- (f) Method of (g) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
organization If applicable grant cash valuation non-cash assistance | orassistance
or government assistance (book, FMV, appraisal,
other)
AIPLEF 54-2019670 501c3 17,500

241 18th Street South
Arlington,VA 22201
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Schedule J Compensation Information OMB No 1545-0047

(Form 990)

For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees
k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, line 23.

2013

Department of the Treasury k- Attach to Form 990. & See separate instructions. Open to Public
Intemal Revenue Service » Information about Schedule J (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection

Name of the organization

American Bar Association

36-0723150

Employer identification number

m Questions Regarding Compensation

la

Check the appropiate box(es) If the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed in Form
990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a Complete Part III to provide any relevant information regarding these items

[ First-class or charter travel [T Housing allowance or residence for personal use
v Travel for companions [T Payments for business use of personal residence
[T Tax idemnification and gross-up payments [T Health or social club dues or initiation fees

[T Discretionary spending account [T Personal services (e g, maid, chauffeur, chef)

If any of the boxes in line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part III to explain

Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all
directors, trustees, officers, including the CEO /Executive Director, regarding the items checked in line 1a?

Indicate which, If any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the
organization's CEO /Executive Director Check all that apply Do not check any boxes for methods

used by a related organization to establish compensation of the CEO /Executive Director, but explain in Part III
|7 Written employment contract

v Compensation survey or study

|7 Compensation committee
[ Independent compensation consultant

[T Form 990 of other organizations v Approval by the board or compensation committee

During the year, did any person listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a with respect to the filing organization
or a related organization

Recelve a severance payment or change-of-control payment?
Participate In, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan?

Participate In, or recelve payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement?
If"Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part III

Only 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations only must complete lines 5-9.

For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the revenues of

The organization?
Any related organization?
If"Yes," to line 5a or 5b, describe iIn Part II1

For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the net earnings of

The organization?
Any related organization?
If"Yes," to line 6a or 6b, describe iIn Part II1

For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any non-fixed
payments not described in lines 5 and 6? If "Yes," describe in Part I1I

Were any amounts reported in Form 990, Part VII, paid or accured pursuant to a contract that was
subject to the initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53 4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe
inPartIII

If"Yes" to line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in Regulations
section 53 4958-6(c)?

Yes

No

ib

Yes

Yes

Yes

4b

No

No

5a

5b

6a

6b

9

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 500537 Schedule J (Form 990) 2013



Schedule J (Form 990) 2013 Page 2

Im Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies If additional space 1s needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported in Schedule ], report compensation from the organization on row (1) and from related organizations, described in the
instructions, on row (11) Do not list any individuals that are not listed on Form 990, Part VII

Note. The sum of columns (B)(1)-(in) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that individual

(A) Name and Title (B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation (C) Retirement and (D) Nontaxable (E) Total of (F) Compensation
(i) Base (ii) Bonus & (iii) Other other deferred benefits columns reported as deferred
compensation iy reportable compensation (B)(1)-(D) In prior Form 990
P compensatlon compensatlon
See Additional Data Table

Schedule J (Form 990) 2013



Schedule J (Form 990) 2013 Page 3

m Supplemental Information

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for PartI, lines 1a, 1b, 3,4a,4b, 4c,5a,5b,6a,6b,7,and 8, and forPart II
Also complete this part for any additional information

Return Reference Explanation

PartI Line 4a Severance payment was provided to Kathryn Wiley, Former Director, Human Resources, in the amount of 100,035 during the year

Schedule J (Form 990) 2013



Additional Data

Form 990, Schedule J, Part II - Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

Software ID:
Software Version:
EIN:

Name:

13000230

13.6.0.0

36-0723150

American Bar Association

(A) Name

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation

(ii) Bonus &
Incentive
compensation

(i) Base
Compensation

(iii) O ther
compensation

(C) Deferred
compensation

(D) Nontaxable
benefits

(E) Total of columns

(B)(1)-(D)

(F) Compensation
reported n prior Form
990 or Form 990-EZ

Jack Rives Executive
Director

(1)
(m)

1,009,746

450

25,350

1,425

1,036,971

Lawrence Gill Deputy
Executive Director

(1)
(m)

491,449

263

21,400

14,748

527,860

Thomas Susman
Director, Government
Liason

(1)
(m)

344,281

1,688

15,274

2,880

364,123

Jarisse Sanborn
General Counsel

(1)
(m)

336,021

723

8,919

1,425

347,088

James Swanson Senior
Director, DC
O perations

(1)
(m)

338,233

266

20,674

2,881

362,054

Chris Gloede Chief
Marketing O fficer

(1)
(m)

307,405

247

20,180

6,524

334,356

Marina Jacks
Assoclate Executive
Director Policy
Governance

(1)
(m)

292,966

322

7,684

9,004

309,976

Carol Stevens Chief of
Communications and
Media Relations

(1)
(m)

246,121

665

7,512

16,712

271,010

H Maria Enright Senior
Director Professional
Services

(1)
(m)

236,014

1,122

3,780

15,887

256,803

Holly Cook Director,
DC Operations

(1)
(m)

227,195

180

5,729

3,788

236,892

Willlam Pusey Senior
Director Editor and
Publisher

(1)
(m)

204,525

102

14,027

25,362

244,016

Robert Rupp Senior
Director Publishing and
CLE

(1)
(m)

175,524

148

7,921

8,004

191,597

Alpha Brady Assoclate
Executive Director -
Public Service

(1)
(m)

170,530

124

2,575

8,404

181,633

Martin Balogh
Assoclate Executive
Director - Meetings
Travel

(1)
(m)

177,190

141

4,882

11,492

193,705

Dolores Gedge Director
of Planning

(1)
(m)

206,132

170

5,845

20,464

232,611

Robert Horowitz
Director, DC
Professional Services

(1)
(m)

208,908

165

5,470

5,048

219,591

Jerry Kiska Deputy
CFO Controller

(1)
(m)

198,618

155

13,639

120

212,532

Laura Metzger Division
Director, Brand and
Product Management

(1)
(m)

190,268

150

3,719

6,606

200,743

Terrence Brooks
Director, Division for
Legal Services

(1)
(m)

186,656

148

5,119

15,633

207,556

Katherine Wiley Former
Director, Human
Resouces

(M
(m)
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SCHEDULE O
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

OMB No 1545-0047

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ 201 3

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on

Form 990 or to provide any additional information. Open to Public
k- Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Inspection
k- Information about Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at
www.irs.gov/form990.

Name of the organization
American Bar Association

Employer identification number

36-0723150

Return
Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part | The ABA provides law yers unparalleled opportunities for professional growth and service through numerous groups

Ill, Section 4a, | dedicated to specific areas of law The Association currently has 21 Sections, w hich range in size from about 3,600 members
Line 1 to more than 60,000 7 divisions and 6 forums All of these groups draw their membership from law yers, judges, academics,
law students and associate members w ith common Interests Sections Include the follow Ing legal areas Administrative Law
and Regulatory Practice Antitrust Law Business Law Criminal Justice Dispute Resolution Environment, Energy and Resources
Family Law Health Law Individual Rights and Responsibilities Intellectual Property Law International Law Labor and Employment
Law Legal Education Litigation Public Contract Law Public Utility, Communications and Transportation Law Real Property, Trust
and Estate Law Science and Technology Law State and Local Government Law Taxation Tort, Trial and Insurance Practice




Return
Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part
Ill, Section 4a,
Line 1

Dwisions include Government and Public Sector Law yers, Judicial, Law Practice, Law Student, Senior Law yers, Solo, Small
Firm and General Practice, Young Lawyers Forums explore new areas of developing law such as Franchising, Air and
Space, Communications, Entertainment and Sports Industries, the Construction Industry and Affordable Housing and
Community Development Sections, Divisions and Forums within the ABA provide members myriad opportunities for
professional development, leadership development, netw orking, pro bono contributions, and education w ithin their ow n
particular field of interest and expertise




Return Explanation
Reference

Form 990, Part lll, | Sections and Divisions also contribute to policy making on issues of importance to both law yers and the public Sections
Section 4a, Line 1 | originate many of the recommendations that become the ABAs policy positions and act as checks and balances on
recommendations of other entities Through the w ork of these groups, the ABA benefits the public through improvement of
both the profession and the legal system




Return Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part lll,
Section 4b, Line 1

By ensuring the continuing education and professional development of the nations law yers, the ABA contributes to a
strong system of justice and professionalism, as well as the protection of clients, the public, and the courts




Return
Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part
Ill, Section 4c,
Line 1

The ABA also publishes both print and electronic versions of the ABA Journal, w hich is provided free to approximately
400,000 members, as well as to numerous libraries interested in legal topics The ABA also published more than 250 books
and eBooks that were sold or distributed to more than 85,000 customers These books offered guidance and counsel in
every legal discipline and every aspect of a legal career Many of these excellent books w ould not have been published by a
commercial publisher because therr revenue potential 1s not great enough for a commercial model




Return
Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part lll,
Section 4c, Line
1

How ever, these publications are of great value to the profession, providing vital information to keep law yers up to date on
developments in the law Thus, ABA publications serve clients, the public and courts by improving the education and
professionalism of the nations law yers Because the ABAs mission Is to serve the profession, many disciplines and
authors are able to publish vital and timely information that w ould not otherw ise be available to the profession




Return
Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part
VI, Section A,
Line 6

The members of the Nominating Committee of the House of Delegates nominate the members of the Board of Governors, the
elective offices of the Association, President, President Elect, Secretary, Treasurer, and Charr of the House of Delegates
Members w ho register for the annual meeting elect six members of the House of Delegates the House elects the Board of
Governors, the Charr of the House and the officers Members may nominate officers and governors by presenting a
nominating petition to the nominating committee w ith the number of member signatures specified in the bylaws for each
elected position Members may Inttiate a referendumto change or initiate ABA policy by filing a petition with the requisite
number of signatures




Return

Explanation
Reference

Form 990, Part VI,

The House, by majority vote, can direct a referendum on a question relating to the substance of the law, the administration
Section A, Line 6

of justice or the policy of the Association In either case, the majority of members casting a ballot determine the result All

members may attend the meetings of the House of Delegates and may submit a report and recommendation for
consideration by the House




Return
Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part
VI, Section A,
Line 7a

The ABA House of Delegates elects the Board of Governors, the officers, and the Chair of the House The House is designed
to be representative of the legal profession in the United States Members of the Association w ho register for the annual
meeting elect six delegates-at-large ABA members of each state elect state delegates ABA members w ho belong to state
and qualifying local Bar Associations also elect delegates, the number being dependent upon the number of ABA members
and law yers In the respective state or local association Association members of ABA sections, divisions and judicial
conferences elect section/division delegates Each section has a mnimum of tw o delegates, with additional delegates
dependent upon the number of members In each section




Return
Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part
VI, Section A,
Line 7a

The US Virgin Islands Bar Association elects a delegate and the Bar Associations of Guamand the Commonw ealth of the
Northern Mariana Islands share one elected rotating delegate State, local and territorial bar associations elect delegates
according to theirr own rules For purposes of election to the Board, the House Is grouped into eighteen geographical districts
Governors serve staggered three year terms the House elects approximately one-third of the Board, and the President-Elect
at each annual meeting The Board of Governors consists of one member from each of the 18 geographical districts, six
section members-at-large, and one non-voting law student member-at-large




Return

Explanation
Reference

Form 990, Part VI,
Section A, Line
7a

The President, Chair of the House, President-Elect, Immediate Past President, Secretary and Treasurer of the ABA are ex-
officio members of the Board of Governors, and every third year the Treasurer-Eect and Secretary-Elect also are included
In the Board of Governors The House elects the Chair of the House for a tw o-year termin even-numbered years every
third year the House elects a Treasurer and Secretary a year in advance for three year terms




Return Reference Explanation

Form 990, Part V|, Prior to fiing the return with the IRS, t Is review ed by the organizations management and then subject to review by
Section B, Line 11a the Audit Committee The Form 990 I1s shared on a secure w ebsite w ith all members of the ABA Board prior to filing
w ith the IRS




Return
Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part VI,
Section B, Line
12a

Each Board member received the Conflict of Interest COI questionnaire this year All responses were review ed by the
Accounting team at the ABA If a Board member discloses a conflict, the Board member must recuse themselves fromany
matter Involving the disclosed conflict, and the recusal is noted In the minutes Addttionally, staff assigned to the Board of
Governors distribute COI forms to Board members prior to each Board meeting and collect the completed COl forms




Return
Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part VI,
Section B, Line
15a

The Compensation Committee of the ABA Board of Governors review ed compensation information of comparable entities
and performance assessments of the top management position and made a recommendation to the full ABA Board of

Governors The ABA Board of Governors must approve the final compensation This process occurs every year and was
last performed calendar year 2014




Return Explanation
Reference

Form 990, Part | The Compensation Committee of the ABA Board of Governors review s compensation information of comparable entties and
VI, Section B, performance of other officers and key employees When the other officer and key employee positions become vacant, the
Line 15b compensation Is review ed by Associations Executive Director and Human Resources department based on guideline
recommendations of the Compensation Committee The ABA Board approves the final compensation of the Executive Director
of the American Bar Association This process occurs every year and was last performed in calendar year 2014 The
Association President and the President-Elect receive 100,000 and 50,000 respectively in compensation for their positions




Return Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part VI, Section
C, Line 19

The ABA constitution and bylaw s, the ABA business conduct standards, and the audited financial statements are
avallable upon request or on the ABA website www abanet org




Return Reference Explanation

Form 990, Part V|, Section | Though this return is reporting on fiscal year August 31, 2014 activities, the compensation reported I1s based on
D, Line 1 the Forms W-2 filed w ith the IRS for calendar year 2013




Return Explanation
Reference

Form 990, Part X|, | Interfund Transfers 3,468,753, Designated reserve for Ops 8,810,043, Investment Income 34,331,154 , Pension Changes
Line 9 2,913,842, Other Non-Operating 538,125 , Realzed Gain on Sale of Investments 29,286,979, Pension Plan Allocation
1,462,393
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. . . OMB No 1545-0047
SCHEDULE R Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships :
(Form 990) = Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 33, 34, 35b, 36, or 37. 20 1 3
= Attach to Form 990. Ik See separate instructions.

Department of the Treasury k- Information about Schedule R (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990. Open to P_ublic
Intemal Revenue Service Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
American Bar Association

36-0723150 .
IEEREHEl 1dentification of Disregarded Entities Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) N
Name, address, and EIN (if applicable) of disregarded entity Pnmary activity Legal domicile (state Total iIncome End-of-year assets Direct controlling
or foreign country) entity

IEXYTEil 1dentification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34 because it had one
or more related tax-exempt organizations during the tax year.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] (9)
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Primary activity Legal domicile (state Exempt Code section Public chanty status Direct controlling Section 512(b)
or foreign country) (if section 501(c)(3)) entity (13) controlled
entity?

Yes No

(1) ABA Fund for Justice & Education Public Service L 501c3 11-Type I No

321 N Clark Street N/A

Chicago, IL 60654

36-6110299

(2) Amencan Bar Endowment Grants L 501c3 7 No

321 N Clark Street N/A

Chicago, IL 60654

36-2384321

(3) Amencan Bar Foundation Research L 501c3 7 No

750 N Lake Shore Drive N/A

Chicago, IL 60611

36-6110271

(4) National Judicial College Education NV 501c3 2 No

Judicial College Bldg MS 358 N/A

Reno, NV 89557

94-2427596

(5) The World Justice Project Public Service DC 501c3 7 No

740 15th Street NW N/A

Washington, DC 20005

27-0359097

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50135Y Schedule R (Form 990) 2013



Schedule R (Form 990) 2013

Page 2

EETREiid Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Partnership Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34
because It had one or more related organizations treated as a partnership during the tax year.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] (9) (h) (i) (6)) (k)
Name, address, and EIN of Primary activity| Legal Direct Predominant Share of Share of |Disproprtionate| Code V-UBI | General or| Percentage
related organization domicile| controlling income(related, |total income |end-of-year| allocations? |amount in box| managing | ownership
(state or entity unrelated, assets 20 of partner?
foreign excluded from Schedule K-1
country) tax under (Form 1065)
sections 512-
514)
Yes No Yes | No

-14¥A"A Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Corporation or Trust Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V,
line 34 because it had one or more related organizations treated as a corporation or trust during the tax year.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) g (h) 0]
Name, address, and EIN of Pnmary activity Legal Direct controlling | Type of entity Share of total |Share of end-of- Percentage Section 512
related organization domicile entity (C corp, S corp, income year ownership (b)(13)
(state or foreign or trust) assets controlled
country) entity?
Yes No
IL ABA C Corp No

(1) ABA Retirement Funds

321 N Clark Street
Chicago, IL 60654
36-2550367

Benefit Plans

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013



Schedule R (Form 990) 2013 Page 3

Transactions With Related Organizations Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, 35b, or 36.

Note. Complete line 1 if any entity 1s listed in Parts II, III, or IV of this schedule Yes | No
1 During the tax year, did the orgranization engage I1n any of the following transactions with one or more related organizations listed in Parts II-IV?

a Receipt of (i) interest (ii) annuities (iii) royalties or (iv) rent from a controlled entity 1a No
b Gift, grant, or capital contribution to related organization(s) 1b No
c Gift, grant, or capital contribution from related organization(s) 1c No
d Loans orloan guarantees to or for related organization(s) id No
e Loans orloan guarantees by related organization(s) 1le No
f Dividends from related organization(s) 1f No
g Sale of assets to related organization(s) 1g No
h Purchase of assets from related organization(s) ih No
i Exchange of assets with related organization(s) 1i No
j Lease offacilities, equipment, or other assets to related organization(s) 1j No
k Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets from related organization(s) 1k No
I Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations for related organization(s) 1l No
m Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations by related organization(s) im No
n Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, or other assets with related organization(s) in No
o Sharing of paid employees with related organization(s) 1lo | Yes
p Remmbursement paid to related organization(s) for expenses 1p No
q Reimbursement paid by related organization(s) for expenses 1q | Yes
r Othertransfer of cash or property to related organization(s) 1r No
s Othertransfer of cash or property from related organization(s) 1s No

2 Ifthe answerto any of the above I1s "Yes," see the instructions for information on who must complete this line, including covered relationships and transaction thresholds

(a) (b) (c) (d)
Name of related organization Transaction Amount involved Method of determining amount involved
type (a-s)

See Addritional Data Table

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013



Schedule R (Form 990) 2013

Page 4

IEEYTEZ28 Unrelated Organizations Taxable as a Partnership Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 37.
Provide the following information for each entity taxed as a partnership through which the organization conducted more than five percent of its activities (measured by total assets or gross

revenue) that was not a related organization See instructions regarding exclusion for certain investment partnerships

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] (9) (h) (i) 6)] (k)

Name, address, and EIN of entity Pnmary activity Legal Predominant | Are all partners Share of Share of Disproprtionate Code V?UBI | General or Percentage

domicile Income section total end-of-year allocations? amount In managing ownership

(state or (related, 501(c)(3) Income assets box 20 partner?

foreign unrelated, organizations? of Schedule

country) |excluded from K-1

tax under (Form 1065)
sections 512-
514)
Yes| No Yes No Yes No

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013
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.m Supplemental Information

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R (see Instructions)

Return Reference Explanation

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013



Additional Data

Form 990, Schedule R, Part V - Transactions With Related Organizations

Software ID:
Software Version:
EIN:

Name:

13000230
13.6.0.0
36-0723150

American Bar Association

(a) (b) (c) (d)
Name of other organization Transaction Amount Involved

type(a-s) Method of determining
yp amount involved

ABA Retirement Funds q 1,022,442

American Bar Endowment q 335,252

American Bar Foundation q 75,161

American Bar Insurance q 77,004

National Judicial College q 345,868

ABA Fund for Justice & Education o} 28,955,805

ABA Fund for Justice & Education q 10,102,175
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Governors
American Bar Association

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanving consolidated financial statements of the American Bar
Assocration (the ABA), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of
August 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in
net assets and cash flows for the vears then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
tinancial statements

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and tarr presentation of these consolidated
tinancial statements n accordance with accounting principles generally accepted n the United
States of America, this includes the design, implementation, and mamtenance of mternal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financral statements that are free
from matertal nusstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor’'s responsibility

Our responsibility 15 to express an opmnion on these consolidated financral statements based on
our audits  We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted n
the United States of America  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from materal
musstatement

An audit mvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures 1n the consolidated financral statements  The procedures selected depend on the
audttor’s judgment, mcluding the assessment of the risks of materal musstatement of the
consolidated tinancral statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers mternal control relevant to the ABA’s preparation and fawr
presentation of the consolidated financral statements mn order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate n the curcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opmon on the
effectiveness of the AB’s nternal control  Accordingly, we express no such opmuon  An audit
also mcludes evaluating the appropriateness of accountmg policies used and the reasonableness

Grant Thornton LLP
US member firm of Grant Thornton Intemational Ltd
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of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamned 1s sutficient and appropriate to provide a

basts for our audit opmnion

Opinion

In our opmuon, the consolidated financral statements referred to above present fauly, n all
matertal respects, the financal position of the American Bar Assocration as ot August 31, 2014
and 2013, and the changes m its net assets and its cash flows for the vears then ended m
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted m the United States of America

Supplementary information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financral
statements as a whole The accompanyving detals of consolidated statements of financral
posttion, detads of consolidated statements of activities and changes m net assets, and functional
detads of consoldated statements of activities and changes m net assets are presented for
purposes of additional analysss, rather than to present the financial position and statements of
activities and changes mn net assets of the mdrvidual entities, and are not a required part of the
consolidated financral statements  Such supplementary mformation s the responsibiity of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlving accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated fmancral statements The mformation has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied n the audits of the consolidated tfinancial statements
and certam additional procedures  These additional procedures included comparing and
reconciling the mformation directly to the underlving accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financral statements or to the consolidated financral statements
themselves, and other additional procedures i accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted m the United States of America In our opmnion, the supplementary information s tairly
stated, 1 all material respects, m relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole

/ﬁw}f T hovdon LLP

Chicago, Hlinors
February 6, 2015

Grant Thornton LLP
US member firm of Grant Thomton Intemational Ltd



American Bar Association

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
August 31,

(In thousands)

ASSETS 2014 2013
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,137 $ 26,393
Accounts recervable, net 11,867 16,498
Inventory, net 4,042 3,754
Prepaid and other assets 2974 3,744
Due from related parties 300 191
Long-term mvestments 325,846 282,127
Long-term mvestments held for a related party 255 240
Property and equipment
Furniture and equipment 45,775 40,520
Leasehold improvements 23,887 25,404
Work n progress 300 3,4H5
Accumulated deprecration 52,165 (49,638)
Property and equipment, net 17.857 19,731
TOTAL ASSETS $381,278 $352.678
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts pavable $ 8313 $ 10,834
Deferred revenue 58,073 58,522
Deferred rent abatement 21,191 18,483
Pension lability 63,768 59,499
Other labilities 8,840 8,143
Debt - 79
Due to related parties 314 300
Total liabilities 160,499 155,800
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Undesignated 92,877 74,004
Board-designated 116,690 112,597
Total unrestricted 209,567 186,601
Temporarily restricted 4,322 3,336
Permanently restricted 6,890 6,881
Total net assets 220,779 196,818
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $381,278 $352,678

The accompanymg notes are an integral part of these statements

ol



American Bar Association

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Years ended August 31,

(In thousands)

2014 2013
Unrestricted net assets
Operating

Revenues
Membership dues $ 71,913 $ 72,651
Meeting fees 26,820 28 46
Advertismg 3,409 3,299
Gifts and grants 58,347 60,571
Publications 11,176 11,969
Rovalties 8,774 7,870
Accreditation fees 4,018 3,196
Other 2484 2,856
Investment income for operations 7,293 7,085
Designated reserve for operations 8,810 6,480
Net assets released from restrictions 1,331 999
Total operating revenues 204,375 206,022

Expenses
Salartes, wages and benefits 95,591 96,314
Professional fees and services 25,892 23,976
Meetmgs and travel 39,196 38,6001
Advertismg and marketing 3,797 3,216
Printing and publications 12,710 12,781
Facilities 21,168 22812
General operations 5,840 7,032
Total operating expenses 204,194 204,732
Excess operatimng revenues over eXpenses 181 1,290

Non-operating

Investment income and realized and unrealized gams, net 34,699 19,784
Pension changes other than net periodic pension cost (2,923) 23,499
Designated reserve for operations (8,810 (6,480)
Other non-operating items (181) 621
Total non-operating revenue 22785 37424
Change 1n unrestricted net assets 22966 38,714
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American Bar Association

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS -
CONTINUED

Years ended August 31,

(In thousands)

2014 2013
Temporarily restricted net assets
Gitts and pledges $ 1,076 $ 87
Investment mncome 1,241 798
Net assets released from restrictions (1.331) 999)
Change 1n temporarily restricted net assets 986 675
Permanently restricted net assets
Gifts and pledges 9 2
Change 1n permanently restricted net assets 9 2
CHANGE IN TOTAL NET ASSETS 23,961 39,391
Net assets at beginning of vear 196,818 157427
Net assets at end of year $220,779 $196,81

The accompanymg notes are an integral part of these statements
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American Bar Association

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended August 31,

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Change 1n total net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change 1n total net assets to net cash (used )
provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposals and sale of property and equipment
Realized and change m unrealized gans from nvesting activities
Changes 1in operating assets and labilities
Decrease 1n accounts recervable
Increase in mventory
Decrease (increase) n prepaid and other assets
(Increase) decrease i mvestments held for related parties
Increase 11 due to/from related parties, net
(Decrease) mcrease m accounts payable
Decrease 1n deferred revenue
Increase i deferred rent abatement
Increase (decrease) m pension lability
Increase n other labilities

Net cash (used 1n) provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Sales of mvestments
Purchases of nvestments
Purchases of property and equipment

Net cash used m mvesting activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Principal payments on long-term debt

Net cash used m financing activities

(Decrease) mcrease n cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at begmning of vear
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplemental disclosures of cash tflow mformation

Cash pad for mterest
Cash pad for income taxes

The accompanymg notes are an integral part of these statements
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2014 2013
$ 23,961 $ 39,391
2,787 4715
- 144
(42,470) (20,371)
40631 88
(288) 277)
770 (1,233)
(15) +
(95) (53)
(2,521) 2,308
(449) (1,804)
2,708 6,331
4,269 (17,502)
697 574
(6,015) 12,315
306,928 13,523
(308,176) (16,721)
914 (7.918)
(2,162) (11,116)
79) (949)
79) 949)
(8,2506) 250
26,393 26,143
$_18,137 $.20,3¢
$ - $ 12
100 330



American Bar Association

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION

The American Bar Assocration (the ABA) 1s the national professional assocration for the nation’s lawvers and
provides a wide range of services to 1ts members and the public  The ABA’s mission 1s to serve equally 1ts
members, 1ts profession and the public by defending liberty and delivermg justice as the national representative
of the legal protession

The consolidated financral statements of the ABA mclude the accounts of the ABA, the American Bar
Assoctation Fund for Justice and Education (the FJE) and The James O Broadhead Corporation (JOB) The
ABA Board of Governors (the Board) approved the dissolution of JOB mn February 2013, and 1t was formally
dissolved m April 2013

The ABA established the FJE as a separate fund m order to obtan tax deductibihity for contributions made to
the FJE  The FJE has no existence separate from the ABA other than its having applied for and mantamed
its status as a tax-exempt fund The FJE’s bvlaws require that the FJE mamntan 1ts assets separate and apart
trom the general and unrestricted assets of the ABA, that these assets mayv not be used m any manner for the
general purposes of the ABA and that the FJE maintan books and records separate and apart from the general
books and records of the ABA

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The ABA’s consolidated financral statements are prepared in conformuty with accounting principles generally
accepted 1 the United States of America (US GAAP)  These prmciples require management to make
estumates and judgments that aftect the reported amounts of assets and lrabilities, the disclosure of contmgent
assets and lrabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses i the reporting period  Actual results
could differ trom those estimates

Fmancral statement presentation follows the accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations  Under
these standards, net assets, revenues, and mvestment mcome or loss are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions, as follows

e Permanently restricted net assets are assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that do not expire over
tume or cannot be removed or satistied by the entitv 1tselt

e Temporariy restricted net assets are assets with donor restrictions that expire with the passage of time, the
occurrence of an event or the fulfillment of certamn conditions  Earninggs related to temporarily restricted
net assets are recorded as temporarily restricted net assets until amounts are expensed m accordance with
the donor’s specitied purposes  When donor restrictions are met, temporaridy restricted net assets are
reclassified as unreitrlcted net assets and reported 1n the consolidated statements of activities and changes
1 net assets as “net assets released from restrictions ”
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American Bar Association

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
August 31, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in thousands)

e Unrestricted net assets are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations other than broad restrictions relating
to the nature or purposes of the entity  The ABA uses unrestricted contributions at its complete discretion
without time or purpose lmits  Board-designated net assets are unrestricted net assets designated by the
Board to be used for several specific purposes The Board retams control over these net assets and may,
at 1ts discretion, subsequently use the net assets for other purposes

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents mclude a money market fund with underlving securities having a dollar-weighted average
maturity of 90 days or less at the time of purchase  The ABA can hiquudate shares of the fund at any time for
no cost The ABA had deposits in excess of federally msured limits at August 31, 2014 and 2013 The ABA
has not experienced any losses 1 such deposit accounts and believes 1t 1s not exposed to any significant credit
risk on cash and cash equivalents  The cash equivalents were $476 and $22,325 m 2014 and 2013, respectrvely

Accounts Receiwble

Accounts recervable are stated at amounts due, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts The ABA evaluates
the collectability of 1ts accounts recervable based on the length of time the recervable 1s outstanding and the
anticipated future uncollectible amounts based on historical experience  Accounts recenvable are charged to
the allowance for doubttul accounts when they are deemed uncollectible, and payvments subsequently recerved
on such recervables are credited to the allowance for doubttul accounts

Inventory

Inventory conssts of book publications and 1s stated at the lower of cost or market  Thus accounting method
takes into consideration both selling price and cost  The ABA uses the weighted-average cost method mn
determining mnventory costs

Inventories are stated net of a reserve for excess and obsolete items Reserves for excess and obsolete
mventortes are based on the value of mnventory items 1 excess of 18 months of sales activity or specific
wdentificatton  The reserve for excess and obsolete mventory was $3,530 and $2,832 m 2014 and 2013,
respectively

Investments

The ABA records at fair value all investments m debt securities and equity securities with readily determinable
tair values based on quoted market prices Investments held for related parties represent mvestments that are
the property of related-party organizations (see note C), which are mamntamed n the ABA investment portfolio

The estimated fair values of nvestments that do not have readdy determmable fair values are based on the net
asset value (NAV) per share or based on estiumates provided by external mvestment managers These fair values
are examined through a valuation review process performed by management A range ot possible values exists
for these securities and, therefore, the estimated values may difter from the values that would have been used
had a ready market for these securities existed

10
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August 31, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in thousands)

Property and Equipment

The ABA records leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment at cost and capitalizes acquisttions of such
ttems having an mnitral cost of $5,000 or more  Acqusitions with a cost of less than $5,000 are expensed n the
current pertod Deprecration and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful life of the assets ranging from five to 16 vears

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fmancral mstruments of the ABA consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts recervable, mventory, long-
term mvestments, accounts payvable and obligations under short-term debt  Except for mstruments evidencing
mndebtedness of the ABA, the fair value of financral mstruments approxmmates thewr carrving value n the
tinancial statements, for which fair value mnformation 1s provided m note E

Net Assets/Board-Designated Funding of Operations

The ABA’s unrestricted net assets include certamn amounts the Board has designated as a reserve for operations

As part of the ABA’s annual budgeting process, the Board decides whether 1t 1s appropriate to increase or
decrease operating revenues by transferrmg amounts from or to the non-operating section ot the consolidated
statements of actrvities and changes m net assets  Amounts equal to the amounts transferred, if any, are then
reclassified within the net assets section of the consolidated statements of financral position between Board-
designated and undesignated In the case of amounts transferred to operating revenues, the Board-designated
amounts are decreased and the undesignated amounts are mcreased by the amounts transferred In the case of
amounts transferred from operating revenues, the Board-designated amounts are mcreased and the
undesignated amounts are decreased by the amounts transferred  Allocations for operations from Board-
designated reserves were $8,810 and $6,480 tor the fiscal vears 2014 and 2013, respectrvely

Operations

In the consolidated financial statements, revenues earned and expenses mcurred m conducting the programs
and services of the ABA are presented as operatmg activittes  Non-operating activities mclude mvestment
mncome or loss, net of income designated for operations, pension changes other than net periodic pension costs,
gans or losses on the sale or disposal of property and equipment 1f applicable, and other non-operating items

Gifts and Contributions

The ABA recognzes cash gitts and contributions as revenue mn the period recerved Pledges are recognized in
the period pledged and recorded at far value Guafts and contributions are reported as erther temporarily or
permanently restricted 1f they are recerved with donor restrictions that it thewr use other than for broad
restrictions relating to the nature or purposes of the ABA  The expiration or fulfillment of donor-imposed
restrictions on contributions result m those contributions bemng reported as net assets released from restrictions
n the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes 1 net assets

1
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Membership Dues

Revenue 15 recognized m the period when the latter of the following has occurred (1) goods and services are
provided and (2) payment for those goods and services has been recetved  Membership dues recerved for a
tuture fiscal pertod are accounted for as deferred revenue That deferred revenue 1s recognized as revenue m
the fiscal pertod when the goods and services paid for are provided

Meeting Fees

Meeting fees for the current fiscal vear are recogmized when the meeting dates have occurred Pavments
recerved for meetings bemng held n the next fiscal vear are accounted for as deferred revenue

Grant Revenne

Grant actrvity 1s recorded as exchange transactions Grant revenue 1s recognized when the expenses have been
ncurred for the purpose specified by the grantor Payments recerved n advance of when expenses have been
mncurred are mtrally recorded as deferred revenue

Publications Revenue

The ABA publishes and distributes numerous magazmes and books  Payment 1s requested n advance for all
publications, except for publications sold to libraries and government agencies  Revenue 1s recorded when the
nvorce 15 1ssued, mvoices are ssued upon shipment

Royalty Revenue

The ABA recerves various rovalties from other orgamizations  These rovalties are primanly from membership
benefits oftered to members and staff of the ABA  The revenue 1s recognized when earned according to
contractual agreements with each organization

Adwvertising Expense
The ABA expenses advertising costs as incurred
Income Taxes

The ABA and the FJE are qualified under the US Internal Revenue Code (the IRC) as tax-exempt
organizations or, m the case of the FJE, as a tax-exempt fund, and are exempt from tax on mcome related to
thetr tax-exempt purposes under Section 501(a) of the IRC  The ABA 1s exempt from income taxes as an
assocration described n Section 501(c)(6) of the IRC  The FJE 1s exempt under Section 501(c)(3) Management
believes there are no matertal uncertain tax posttions that require recognition n the accompanying consolidated
financial statements While exempt from mcome tax under IRC Section 501(a), the ABA 15 subject to tax on
mncome unrelated to its exempt purposes, unless that mcome 1s otherwise excluded by the IRC  The tax vears
0t2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 are still open to audit tor both tederal and state purposes  There 1s $34 of mterest
related to mcome taxes that s mcluded in other labilities and other non-operating expenses as of and for the
vear ended August 31, 2014 There were no interest or penalties related to mcome taxes that have been accrued
or recognized as of and for the year ended August 31, 2013
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(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE C - RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Each of the American Bar Endowment, the American Bar Foundation, the ABA Retirement Funds and the
National Judicial College 1s under 1ts own management, but each 1s related to the ABA through some common
directors, officers or members

The American Bar Endowment contributed $3,365 and $3,616 to the ABA m 2014 and 2013, respectively  The
FJE contributed $225 to the National Judicral College m 2014 and 2013 The ABA held $255 and $240 m long-
term mvestments for the National Judicial College in 2014 and 2013, respectrvely  In additton, the ABAs
expenses were reduced by $1,926 and $1,452 1n 2014 and 2013, respectively, for expense reimbursements
recerved from the followmng related organizations

2014 2013

ABA Retirement Funds $1,022 $ 990
American Bar Endowment 335 212
National Judicial College 346 25
American Bar Foundation 75 65
American Bar Insurance 77 62
National Assocration of Women Lawvyers 39 38
National Association of Bar Executives 16 31
National Conference of Bar Presidents __16 29

Total $1,926 $1,452

The expense reimbursements are principally for compensation, rent and services provided by the ABA that are
erther directly chargeable to the related organization or are allocated based on usage studies

NOTE D - INVESTMENTS

The ABA’s consolidated long-term nvestments at August 31, 2014 and 2013, are as follows

2014 2013
Equuty securities $225,248 $190,331
Fixed mcome 100,598 91.796
Total long-term mvestments $325,816 $282.127
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Investment returns in each net asset category for the vears ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, are as follows

2014
Temporarily
Unrestricted restricted Total
Interest and drvidends, net of management fees $ 703 $ 27 $ 736
Realized gans, net 29,542 827 30,369
Unrealized gans m market value, net 11,687 441 12,128
Total nvestment return $41,992 $1,2141 $43,233
2013
Temporarily
Unrestricted restricted Total
Interest and drvidends, net of management fees $ 7,620 $ 275 $ 7,895
Realized gans, net 1,470 - 1,470
Unrealized gans m market value, net 18,379 523 18,902
Total mvestment return $27.169 $_798 $28,267

On an annual basss, the Board may approve the allocation of investment income to operating revenue
Investment mcome allocated to operations m 2014 and 2013 totaled $7,293 and $7,685, respectively  The
allocated amount mcludes all short-term mvestment ncome earned and a percentage of the average balance of
the long-term mvestments for a prior 12-quarter perrod Investment returns on long-term mvestments,
excluding the return on long-term mvestments allocated to operations, are recorded as a non-operating activity
and totaled $3+4,699 and $19,784 tor fiscal years 2014 and 2013, respectively

The ABA pays management fees to varous fund managers that are netted agamnst mvestment mcome
Management tees were $723 and $75 for fiscal vears 2014 and 2013, respectively  The lrabiity related to long-
term mnvestments held for related parties 15 mcluded under the caption “Due from related parties” or “Due to
related parties” on the accompanving consolidated statements of financral posttion

NOTE E - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The ABA values 1ts tinancal assets based on the price that would be recerved to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a labiity 1n an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date  In order to increase
conststency and comparability in fair value measurements, a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes observable and
unobservable nputs 15 used to measure fair value n three broad levels, which are described below

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) n active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical
assets or labilities

Level 2 - Observable mputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or labilities
2
quoted prices n mnactive markets, or model-derrved valuations n which all significant mputs are observable or
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can be derrved principally from or corroborated with observable market data Level 2 also includes investments
measured using NAV per share, or its equivalent, that may be redeemed at that NAV at the date of the statement
of financral posttion or n the near term, which 1s generally considered to be withm 90 davs

Level 3 - Unobservable mputs are used when little or no market data s avadable Level 3 also includes
mvestments measured usmng NAV that can never be redeemed at the NAV or for which redemption at NAV
15 uncertain due to lock-up pertods or other mvestment restrictions

In determuming fair value, the ABA uses valuation techniques that maxmmuze the use of observable inputs and
muumize the use of unobservable mputs to the extent possible, as well as considers counterparty credit risk in
its assessment of fair value Fmancral assets carried at fair value at August 31, 2014 and 2013, are classified in
the tables below m one of three categories as described above Transfers between levels are recognized as of
the end of the reporting period

2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents
Money market accounts $ 476 $ - $ - $ 476
Long-term mvestments
Equity securities
US large-cap ndex - 81,241 - 81,241
US small-cap mdex - 10,788 - 10,788
Mutual funds 68,726 - - 68,726
International index - 44463 - 44,463
Defensive U S equuty - 576 - 576
Emergmg markets - 19,454 - 19,454
Fixed mncome securities
Bond funds - 100,598 - 100,598
Total long-term mvestments 68,726 257,120 - 325,846
Long-term mvestments held for related parties
Bond fund - 255 - 255
Total assets at fair value $_69,202 $257,375 S - $326,577
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2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tota
Cash and cash equivalents
Money market accounts $ 22325 $ - $ - $ 22325
Long-term mvestments
Equity securities
US large-cap ndex 95,105 - - 95,105
US mud-cap mdex 24,126 - - 24,126
US small-cap ndex 20,648 - - 20,648
International mndex 50,452 - - 50,452
Fixed mcome securities
Corporate bond fund 91,796 - - 91,796
Total long-term mvestments 282,127 - - 282,127
Long-term mvestments held for related parties
Corporate bond fund 210 - - 240
Total assets at fair value $30-L,692 - - $304,692
NOTE F - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts recervable consst of the following at August 31
2014 2013
Grants (net of allowance for doubttul accounts ot $290 m 2014 and
$632 m 2013) $ 4425 $ 7,345
Non-dues revenue general recervables (net ot allowance for doubtful
accounts of $143 n 2014 and $73 1 2013) 4,313 4,250
Spectal advances on mtemational grants 2,072 1,938
Royalties 830) 693
Madmg list (net of allowance tor doubttul accounts ot $1 m 2014 and
$2 11 2013) 227 239
Tenant improvement reimbursements - 2,033
Total $11,867 $16,498

NOTE G - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
The emplovees of the ABA, together with the emplovees of the American Bar Endowment, the American Bar

Foundation and the National Judicial College (the Plan Sponsors) participate m the A-E-F-C Pension Plan (the
Penston Plan), a detmed benefit plan, and the ABA Thrift Plan, a contributory and defined contribution plan,
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(the Thrift Plan) In an amendment eftfective January 1, 2007, emplovees hired on or after that date are not
eligible to participate 1n the Pension Plan, but participate n the defined contribution portion of the Thrift Plan
Emplovees as of December 31, 2006, could remam 1n and accrue additional benefits under the Pension Plan or
elect to convert to the defined contribution plan as of January 1, 2007 Annual contributions to the defined
contribution plan are 5°0 of the participant’s annual salarv  Emplovees who converted to the defined
contribution plan retan vested benefits accrued as of December 31, 2006, under the Pension Plan

Under the Thrift Plan, participants may contribute to a 401(k) m which the emplover matches each contribution
dollar-for-dollar to a maxmmum of $300 (amount not m thousands) Thereatter, the employer contributes at a
rate of 50° o of the participant’s contribution up to an employer maximum ot 3% o of a participant’s annual salary
The ABA’s portion of the Pension Plan expense for the vears ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, was $5,525 and
$7,609, respectively  Effective January 1, 2011, the Pension Plan was amended to reduce the plan benefit
formula with the ntent that the expected cost of ABA’s tuture accrual would approxmmate 5%o of total
participants’ pay

The Pension Plan pays management fees to vartous fund managers that are netted against investment mcome
These management fees are m support of the Pension Plan as a whole, which also supports some ABA related
parties  The management tees were $597 and $409 tor tiscal vears 2014 and 2013, respectrvely

The funded status of the ABA’s portion of the Pension Plan at the measurement dates, August 31, 2014 and
2013, and the accrued pension costs recognized m the ABA’s consolidated statements of financial position at
August 31, 2014 and 2013, are as follows

2014 2013
Change 1n projected benefit obligation
Projected benefit obligation at begimning of year $166,935 $183,976
Service cost 1,516 2,066
Interest cost 8,035 7,188
Actuaral loss (gamn) 13,504 (20,850)
Benefits paid (5,960) (5,415
Projected benefit obligation at end of vear 184,024 166,935
Change 1n Pension Plan assets
Fair value of Pension Plan assets at begmning of vear 107,436 106,975
Actual return on Pension Plan assets 14,608 4,293
Benefits paid (5,960) (5, H5)
Emplover contributions 4,178 1,613
Fair value ot assets at end of vear 120,256 107436
Funded status as of the measurement date $.(63,768) $.(59,499
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2014 2013
Components of adjustments to unrestricted net assets
Unrecognized prior service cost $ (1,550 $ (2,522
Unrecognized net loss 62,149 60,198
Tortal adjustments to unrestricted net assets $_60,599 $_57,676
Amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of financral position
Accrued penston labiity $.(63,768 $.(59.499
Accumulated benefit obligation $184,024 $166,935
Weighted-average assumptions used to determme benefit obligations
Discount rate 437% 491%
Rate of compensation mcrease 335 330
Expected return on Pension Plan assets 700 700
Components of net pertodic pension costs
Service cost $ 1,516 $ 2,066
Interest cost 8,035 7,188
Actual return on Pension Plan assets (7,538) (7,396)
Amortization of net loss 4,485 7,238
Amortization of prior service credit 973) (1487)
Total net pertodic pension cost 5,525 7,609
Weighted-average assumptions used to determme net periodic benefit cost
Discount rate 491% 397%
Rate of compensation mcrease 330 330
Expected return on Pension Plan assets 700 700
Components of pension-related changes other than net periodic
pension costs are as follows at August 31
Net loss (gam) 6,435 (17,748)
Amortization of net loss (+,485) (7,238)
Amortization of prior service credit 973 1487
Total pension changes other than net periodic pension costs 2,923 (23,499
Total net pertodic pension cost and pension changes
other than net pertodic pension cost $__ 8448 $.(15,890)
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Pension Plan Assets

The composition of Pension Plan assets at the measurement dates of August 31, 2014 and 2013, 15 as follows

2014 2013
Equity securities
us qulll’}' 16 1% 17 3%
Global Ex U S 124 69
Emerging markets 67 123
Total equuty securities 352 365
Debt securities
Fixed mcome 343 281
Invested cash 04 21
Total debt securities 347 304
Real asset fund 34 80
Absolute return 134 143
Equity hedge tunds 13 108
Total 100 0% 100 0%

The mvestment policy of the Pension Plan Administration Commuttee (Commuttee) seeks reasonable asset
growth at prudent risk levels within target allocations  Asset allocation target ranges are reviewed quarterly and
re-balanced to within policy target allocations  The mvestment policy 1s reviewed at least annually, and revised,
as deemed appropriate, by the Commuttee

The Pension Plan’s nvestments are diversified to mutigate risks of loss vet maximize investment returns  Due
to the volatility of the capital markets, there 15 a reasonable possibility of changes n tair value, resulting n
additional losses 1 the near term It 1s the intention of the ABA to fund its portion of the Pension Plan as
required by the Emplovee Retirement Income Security Act ot 1974
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The fair values of the Pension Plan assets at August 31, 2014 and 2013, by asset category are as follows

Common stock funds
Money market funds
Mutual funds
Fixed
Equity
Collectrve trust funds
Fixed
Equity
Liumated lrabiity company
Hedge funds

Total mvestments

Common stock funds
Money market funds
Mutual funds
Fixed
Equity
Collectrve trust funds
Fixed
Equity
Liumated lrabiity company
Hedge funds

Total mvestments

2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 3,103 $ - $ - $ 3,103
- 1,126 - 1,126
28,0014 - - 28,0014
15,982 - - 15,982
- 13,037 13,037
- 6,783 - 6,783
- 11,323 - 11,323
- 39,245 1,653 40.898
$47.08¢ $71,514 $1,653 $120,256

2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 3,856 $ - $ - $ 3,856
- 1,456 - 1,456
20,857 - - 20,857
17,209 - - 17,209
- 9,369 - 9,369
- 10,677 - 10,677
- 8,970 - 8,970
- 28,834 6,208 35,042
§41000  $3930 $6.208 $107436

The followmng table sets forth the nvestment strategies and redemption terms for those investments that are
measured at NAV per share as of August 31, 2014

Limuted liability company
Collective trust funds
Fixed
Equty
Hedge funds

Total

Redemption Redemption
Restrictions frequency perod
No lock-up Monthly 30 days
No lock-up Dualy or monthly 1 -2 days
No lock-up Monthly 6 -31 days

0 - 24-month lock-up

20)

Monthly, quarterly or

annually

30 - 90 days
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The followmng table sets forth the nvestment strategies and redemption terms for those investments that are
measured at NAV per share as of August 31, 2013

Redemption Redemption
Fair value Restrictions frequency peniod
Limuted liability company $ 8970 No lock-up Monthly 45 davs
Collective trust funds
Fixed 9,369 No lock—up Daily or monthly L - 30 days
Equty 10,677 No lock—up Daily or monthly L - 30 days
Hedge funds 35.042 0-24-month lock-up Daily, monthly or annually 7 - 90 davs
Total $64,058

Limuted Irability company - Invests 1 predommantly U § large-cap equities  This fund 1s valued using NAV

Collective trust funds (fixed) are designed to protect capital with low-risk mvestments and include cash, bank
notes, corporate notes, government bills and varwous short-term debt mstruments  These mvestments are
valued using the NAV provided by the admumuistrator of the fund

Collective trust funds (equuty) are designated to protect capital with low-risk investments and mclude cash,
global energy equities, global metals and mming equities, non-U S equities, commodities, and U S Treasury
mnflation protected securities  They are valued usmg NAV

Hedge funds consist of mvestments in a diverse range of hedge funds as well as common stocks These
mnvestments are valued using the NAV provided by the administrator of the fund as well as direct market quotes
There are currently diverse amounts of redemption restrictions depending on the fund

To determine the expected annual long-term rate of return for the Pension Plan, the hustorical performance,
mvestment community forecasts and current market conditions are analyzed to develop expected returns for
each of the asset classes used by the Pension Plan  The expected returns for each asset class are then weighted
by the target allocations of the Pension Plan  Effective September 1, 2010, and continued through 2014, the
expected long-term rate of return assumption used to determme pension expense 15 7 00%o

The following table summarizes the change n tair values assoctated with Level 3 assets

2014 2013
Balance at beginning of vear $ 6,208 $ 33,587
Transters from Level 3 to Level 2 (6,208) (28,361)
Purchases 1,601 -
Unrealized gains related to mstruments still held at the reporting date 52 982
Balance at end of vear $_1,653 $_06,208
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Transfers Between Levels

The avadabdity of observable market data 15 monitored to assess the appropriate classification of financral
mstruments within the fair value hierarchy  Changes m economic conditions or model-based valuation
techiuques may requure the transfer of fancral mnstruments from one fair value level to another In such
mstances, the transfer 1s reported at the begmning of the reporting pertod  The Commuttee and the Plan
Sponsors, with the assistance of a third-party investment advisor, evaluate the significance of transfers between
levels based on the nature of the financral mstrument and size of the transfer relative to total net assets available
for benefits

At August 31, 2014, 1t was determumed that $6,208 ot the total hedge tund investment was fully redeemable  As

a result, these mvestments were transterred from Level 3 to Level 2 At August 31, 2013, these mvestments
were deemed to be Level 3 since they were new to the portfolio and they were not fully redeemable

Cash Flows
Expected contributions for the fiscal vear ending August 31, 2015 $ 5,168

Estimated future benefit payments reflecting expected future
service for the fiscal vears ending August 31

2015 $ 7,326
2016 7,876
2017 8,419
2018 8,881
2019 9,315
2020 through 2024 53,527

ABA Thrift Plan

The ABA’s expense related to the 401(k) match of the Thrift Plan for the vears ended August 31, 2014 and
2013, totaled $1,346 and $1,308, respectively  The ABA’s expense related to the discretionary contribution of
the defined contribution for the plan vears ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, totaled $1,519 and $1,523,
respectively

NOTE H - DEBT

In July 2002, the ABA entered mto a varable-rate loan agreement with a tinancial mstitution to borrow $8,539,
which was used to build out the office space at the 321 North Clark Street facility in Chicago  Interest charged
on the loan agreement s set at the London Interbank Offered Rate plus 1 15° 0 and 15 determuned and payable
monthly  Commencmng October 1, 2004, and each month thereafter, the ABA 1s required to repay the
outstanding prmcipal in equal monthly mnstallments based on a nne-vear amortization schedule, together with
all interest accrued The loan agreement matured on October 1, 2013, and was paid m full Interest expense
tor the vears ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, totaled $-0- and $7, respectrvely
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NOTE I - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The ABA leases certam facilities and equipment under non-cancelable operatingleases  In July 2011, the ABA
amended the current operating lease agreement for the Chicago office space (North Clark Lease) The
amendment extended the current lease for an additional five-year pertod through June 2024, with a renewal
option for an additional five vears and the payment of allocated real estate taxes and certain other expenses

In February 2012, the ABA entered into a lease agreement ftor office space located m Washington, D C
(Washmgton Square Lease) The lease period 1s for 189 months beginning on the lease commencement date
of June 1, 2013

Future mimnmum payments under these leases with mitial or remaimning terms of one year or more and future
muumum sublease rental mcome from related parties as of August 31, 2014, are as follows

Minimum Net
Minimum sublease minmum

lease rental lease
payments mncome payments

Fiscal vears ending August 31,

2015 $ 8333 $ 240 $ 8,093
2016 8,921 250 8,071
2017 9,174 271 8,903
2018 9,475 281 9,194
2019 9,816 282 9,53+
Thereafter 72,922 1,121 71,801
Total mmimum lease pavments $118,041 $2,445 $116,196

Certain leases contamn clauses allowing the ABA to terminate the agreements If these options are exercised,
tinancral penalties will be incurred

In conunction with the Washington Square Lease, the landlord has made contributions for tenant
improvements amountmg to $66 and $6,04 m 2014 and 2013, respectively  These contributions are retlected
as a leasehold mprovement and deferred rent abatement i the accompanyving consolidated statements of
tinancial posttion  The leasehold mprovement contribution will be amortized over the lesser of the term of
the lease or the useful life of the assets from the time they are put into service The deferred rent abatement 1s
bemng accreted over 15 75 vears, the term of the lease, and 15 mcluded as a reduction mn rent expense, which also
15 mcluded 1 facihities expense  The amortization and accretion amounted to $438 and $96 for the vears ended
August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and the remammg unamortized balance 15 $5,576 and $5,948 at
August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively

The Washington Square Lease mcludes additional rent abatements to be amortized n the future amounting to
$3,550 and $3,795 tor the yvears ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively  These abatements are reflected
as a reduction mn rent expense over the life of the lease on a straight-lne basis m the consolidated statements
of activities and changes m net assets with the deferred rent abatement i the consolidated statements of
tmancal position  The amortization and accretion amounted to $245 and $61 tor the vears ended August 31,
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2014 and 2013, respectively, and the remaning unamortized balance s $4,449 and $1,012 at August 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively, which mcludes the straight-line impact of escalating rents

In conjunction with the North Clark Lease, the landlord made a contribution for tenant improvements
amounting to $10,266 and $980 n 2004 and 2011, respectrvely  This contribution s reflected as a leasehold
improvement and deferred rent abatement in the consolidated statements of financral posttion  The first
leasehold improvement contribution 1s being amortized over 15 vears, the life of the lease, and 15 mcluded n
tacilities expense m the accompanving consolidated statements ot activities and changes m net assets  The
second leasehold improvement contribution 1s bemng amortized over 13 vears, the life of the lease extension,
and 15 mcluded m facilities expense m the accompanving consolidated statements of activities and changes n
net assets The deferred rent abatement 1s bemg accreted over 15 vears and 1s included as a reduction n rent
expense, which also 15 included 1n facilities expense  The amortization and accretton amounted to $760 tor the
vears ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, and the remammg unamortized balance 1s $4,054 and $4,814 at August
31, 2014 and 2013, respectively

The North Clark Lease mcludes additional rent abatements to be amortized i the future amountmg to $3,083
and $3,396 for the vears ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively  These abatements are retlected as a
reduction i rent expense over the life of the lease on a straight-lime basis n the consolidated statements of
activities and changes n net assets with the deferred rent abatement in the consolidated statements ot financral
posttion  The amortization and accretion amounted to $313 for the vears ended August 31, 2014 and 2013,
and the remamning unamortized balance 15 $7,112 and $6,708 at August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectrvely, which
mncludes the straight-line impact ot escalating rents

The following table mcludes balances related to both of the ABA leases mentioned above

2014 2013
Tenant improvement - rent abatement $17.356 $17,290
Amortization of abatement on tenant improvements (7,7206) (6,527)
Rent expense - rent abatement, net 11,561 7,720
Deferred rent abatement $21,191 $18,483

Rent expense tor all operatmg leases totaled $9,088 and $8,773 tor the vears ended August 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively

The ABA subleases space to several related organizations  Under these agreements, annual sublease rental
mncome may be adjusted for increases in operating expenses Total sublease rental ncome for the vears ended
August 31, 2014 and 2013, totaled $245 and $1806, respectively

The ABA has been named as a defendant i several lawsuits arsing in the ordmary course of busmess It 1s the
opton of the ABA that these suits will not have a material adverse effect on the ABA’s financial position or
operations
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
August 31, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE J - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The ABA’s musston 15 to serve equally 1ts members, 1ts profession and the public by defending liberty and
delivering justice as the national representative of the legal profession  Expenses related to program functions,
general and admuustrative functions, and fundrasing tunctions are as follows for the vears ended August 31

2014 2013
Programs $171,071 $169,172
General and adminstrative 32,092 34,796
Fundrasing 1,031 704
Total $204,194 $204,732

NOTE K - TEMPORARILY AND PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets mclude gifts and mvestment mcome for which donors” restrictions have not
vet been met Temporarily restricted net assets are avaidable for the followmg purposes at August 31

2014 2013

Fund for Judictal Improvement Projects $1,938 $1,532
FIE Endowment Fund 1,375 762
Death Penalty Representation Support Fund 272 280
Public Contract Law Education Projects 94 101
Indrvidual Rights and Responsibilities Programs 48 61
Benjamin Crvilettt Fund +7 3
Elder Law Education Program 40 -
Library of Congress 38 1
Commussion on Law and Aging 35 73
E Lawrence Barcella Jr Fund 34 16
Icon of Liberty Under Law - Magna Carta 33 -
State Traftic Court Technology 33 34
IBM Cyber security Legal Task Force 32 42
Francs Shattuck Security /Peace Inttiative 28 28
Robert B Yegge Program 22 23
Drversity - Next Steps 21 23
Addressing State Responsibiity for Sexual Violence as a Weapon of War 20 20
Other _212 _337

Total $1,322 $3,336
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
August 31, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in thousands)

Durmg fiscal vears 2014 and 2013, temporarily restricted net assets ot $1,331 and $999, respectively, were
released to cover program expenses meeting the donor restrictions  Released temporarily restricted net assets
consist of the following for the vears ended August 31

2014 2013

Litigation Fellows Support Fund $ 263 $285
Fund for Judictal Improvement Projects 212 91
Commussion on Immugration 137 138
Death Penalty Presentation 83 11
Legal Opportunity Scholarship Fund 81 28
Women m Profession 74 31
Commussion on Racral and Ethnic Diversity 43 57
Commussion on Disability Rughts 12 2
Commussion on Law and Aging 39 55
Public Education 37 32
Library of Congress 35 -
Magna Carta Memortal Restoration 33 -
AIDS Fundraser 24 10
Individual Rights and Responsibilities Programs 23 20)
Enhanced Grassroots Program 23 -
Pro Bono Military Project 20 65
Other _ 162 174
Total $1,331 $999

Permanently restricted net assets are mamtamned mn perpetutty and mvested according to the ABA mnvestment
policy and donor-imposed restrictions  The mnvestment mncome 1s available to support various programs and
operations as restricted by the donor Permanently restricted net assets consist of the followmng at August 31

2014 2013

FJE Endowment Fund $3,457 $3,457
Justice Funds 2,113 2112
Marte Walsh Sharpe Fund 927 927
E Lawrence Barcella Fund 110 110
Carols Morrs Fund for Professional Education 100 100
Erskme M Ross Fund 100 100
Henry C Morris Fund 50 50
Other __33 25

Tortal $6,890 $6,881

The FJE endowment fund conssts of 39 individual tunds established fora variety of purposes  Its endowments
are classified as donor-restricted endowment funds  As required by US GAAP, net assets assoctated with
endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
August 31, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in thousands)

The ABA has mterpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Act of 2006 (UPMIFA) as
requirmg the presentation of the fair value of the ongmal gift as of the gift date ot the donor-restricted
endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary  As a result of this interpretation, the ABA
classifies as permanently restricted net assets (1) the ongmal value of gifts donated to the permanent
endowment, (2) the oniginal value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment and (3) accumulations to
the permanent endowment made n accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift mstrument at
the time the accumulation 1s added to the fund The remamimng portion of the donor-restricted endowment
tund that 15 not classified as permanently restricted net assets 1s classified as temporanly restricted net assets
until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the orgamization in a manner consistent with the
standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA

In accordance with UPMIFA, the ABA considers the following factors when making a determnation to
approprrate or accumulate donor-restricted funds

¢ The duration and preservation of the tund

¢ The purposes ot the ABA and the FJE, as applicable, and the donor-restricted endowment fund
e General economic conditions

e The possible eftect of inflation and deflation

e The expected total return from mcome and the apprecration of mvestments

e Other resources of the ABA

e The mvestment policies of the ABA

The ABA has adopted mvestment and spendmng policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of funding to programs supported by 1ts endowments while seeking to mamntain purchasing
power of endowment assets  Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the FJE
must hold in perpetusty  Under this policy, endowment assets are mnvested n a manner that 1s ntended to
produce a real return, net of mflation and mvestment management costs, of at least 5° o annually over the long
term  Actual returns mn any given vear may vary from this amount

To satisty 1ts long-term rate-of-return objectives, the ABA relies on a total return strategy in which investment
returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current vield (nterest and
dividends)  The ABA targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis on equity-based
mvestments to achieve 1ts long-term objectives withm prudent risk constramts

The ABA has a policy of appropriating for distribution each vear 5%o of 1ts endowment funds’ rollng average
tair value over the prior 36 months through the calendar vear-end immeduately preceding the fiscal vear in which
the distribution 1s planned  In establishing this policy, the ABA considered the long-term expected return on
its endowments  Accordmgly, over the long-term, the ABA expects the current spending policy to allow 1ts
endowments to grow at an average of the estimated long-term rate ot nflanon  This 15 consistent with the
ABA’s objective to mamtan the purchasing power of endowment assets held for a specific term, as well as to
provide additional real growth through new gifts and mvestment return

From time to time, the ABA recerves contributions subject to donor restrictions requiring their use for the
specific purpose of an existing permanent endowment, but only temporarily restricting the use of those funds
These tvpes of contributions are classitied m the composition table below as temporarly or unrestricted assets,
depending on the mtent ot the donor
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August 31, 2014 and 2013
(Dollars in thousands)

Endowment net asset composition s as follows as of August 31

2014
Temporarly  Permanently
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total
Donor-restricted endowment funds $ - $3,351 $6,890 $10,241
Quast-endowment funds 1,685 - - 1,685
Total funds $1,685 $3,351 $6.890 $11,926
2013
Temporarly  Permanently
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total
Donor-restricted endowment funds $ - $2,235 $6,881 $ 9,116
Quast-endowment funds 1,482 - - 1483
Total funds $1.183 $2,235 $6,881 $10,599
Changes in endowment net assets are as follows for the vears ended August 31
Temporarly  Permanently
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total
Endowment net assets, August 31, 2013 $1,483 $2,235 $6,881 $10,599
Investment return
Net apprecration (realized and unrealized) 202 1,241 - 1443
Total mvestment return 202 1,241 - 1,443
Contributions - - 9 9
Appropriation of endowment assets for
expenditures - 125) - 125)
Endowment net assets, August 31, 2014 $1,685 $3,351 $6,890 $11,926
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
August 31, 2014 and 2013

(Dollars in thousands)

Temporarly  Permanently

Unrestricted restricted restricted Total
Endowment net assets, August 31, 2012 $1,358 $1,491 $6,879 $ 9,728
Investment return
Investment mcome 65 275 - 340
Net apprecration (realized and unrealized) 60 523 - 583
Total nvestment return 125 798 - 923
Contributions - - 2 2
Appropriation of endowment assets for
expenditures - 54) - 54)
Endowment net assets, August 31, 2013 $1.183 $2,235 $6,881 $10,599

NOTE L - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On September 15, 2011, the ABA entered into a sales agreement with JBC Funds 740 LLC for the sale of
property located at 740 15th Street N W', Washmgton, D C  This sale was completed on December 16, 2011,
and led to the dissolution of JOB  As a result of the dissolution of JOB, m 2013, operating revenues m the
amount of $5 were reclassified to discontinued operations i the non-operating section of the statement of
activities and changes m net assets for comparative presentation purposes In 2013, an mcome tax credit of
$809 was recognized for overpayment of taxes pad m fiscal 2012 related to the sale of the buddmng

NOTE M - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The ABA evaluated events and transactions occurrmg subsequent to August 31, 2014 through February 0,

2015, the date the consolidated financial statements were avadable to be 1ssued  During this period, there have
been no subsequent events requiring recognition or disclosure n the consolidated financial statements
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DETAILS OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31,
(In thousands)

2014 2013
ABA Fund ABA Fund
Amercan for Amercan for

Bat Jusuce and Bat Justice and
ASSETS Assoclation Education Consolhidated Assoclation Education Consohidated
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,968 $ 5,169 $ 18,137 $ 24,129 $§ 2,264 $ 26,393
Accounts 1ecervable, net 5,154 6,713 11,867 ~,152 9,346 16,498
Inventory, net 3,945 9 4,042 3,660 94 3,754
Piepaid and other assets 2,899 -5 2974 3,74+ - 3,74+
Due from 1elated parties 300 - 300 191 - 191
Long-tetm mvestments 313,440 12,406 325,846 270,929 11,198 282,127
Long-term mvestments held tor telated parties 255 - 255 240 - 240
Pll)l)ell'_\ and equipment
Fuiniture and equipment 45,760 15 45775 40513 6 40,519
Leasehold improvements 23,88~ 23,88~ 25,404 - 25,404
Woik m progress 125 235 360 3,445 - 3,445
Accumulated depreciation 52,158 O) (52.165) (49.631) 6) (49.637)
Net property and equipment 17614 243 17,85~ 19.731 - 19.731
TOTAL ASSETS $356,575 $24,703 $381.278 $329."76 $22.902 $352.6°8
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable § ~,784 $ 529 § 8,313 $ 10,336 $ 4198 $ 10,834
Deteried 1evenue 52,780 5,293 58,073 55,984 2,538 58,522
Deteried 1ent abatement 21,191 - 21,191 18,483 - 18,483
Penston Lability 63,768 - 63,768 59,499 - 59,499
Other liabilities 8,832 8 8,840 8,143 - 8,143
Debt - - - 9 - -9
Due to 1elated parties 314 - 314 162 62 300
Total llabilities 154,669 5,830 160,499 152,062 3,798 155,860
NET ASSETS
Uniesticted
Undesignated 86,901 5,976 92,87~ 66,601 403 4,004
Board-designated 115,005 1,685 116,690 11,113 1484 112,597
Total uniestucted 201,906 7,661 209,567 177714 8,887 186,601
Temporauly 1estucted - 4,322 4,322 - 3,336 3,336
Permanently 1estucted - 6,890 6.890 - 6,881 6.881
Total net assets 201,906 18.873 220,779 1=~ "14 19,104 196,818
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
NET ASSETS $356,575 $24,703 $381.278 $329.776 $22.902 $352,6°8
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DETAILS OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Years ended August 31,

(In thousands)

2014
ABA Fund
Amencan tor
Bat Justice and 2013
Association Education Consolidated Consolidated
Uniestiicted
Operating
Revenues
Membership dues $ 71,913 $ - $ 71,913 $ 72,651
Mecting tees 25,468 1,352 26,820 28,446
Advertusing 3,409 - 3,409 3,299
Gufts and grants 7,355 50,992 58,347 60,571
Publications 10,793 383 11,176 11,969
Royalties 8,670 104 8,774 -,870
Accreditation fees 54 3,964 4,018 3,196
Othet 2,340 144 2,484 2,856
Investment mcome tor operations 7,293 7,293 7,685
Designated 1eserve tor operations 8,810 8,810 6,480
Net assets teleased from testuctions - 1,331 1,331 999
Total operating tevenues 146,105 58,270 204,375 206,022
Expenses
Salates, wages and benetits 67,354 28,237 95,591 96,314
Piotessional fees and services 10,991 14,901 25,892 23976
Mectings and tiavel 29,250) 9,946 39,196 38,601
Advertsing and matketing 3,763 34 3,797 3,216
Punting and publications 11,86~ 843 12,710 12,781
Facilities 16,238 4,930 21,168 22812
Geneal operations 1,398 4442 5,840 032
Total operating expenses 140,861 63,333 204,194 204,732
Intettund tiansters 3,469 3.469)
Total operating expenses and transtets 144330 59.864 204,194 204,732
Excess operating tevenues over (undet) expenses after transters 1,775 (1,594) 181 1,290
Non-operating
Investment mcome and ealized and untealized gamns, net 34,331 368 34,699 19,784
Pension changes other than net petodic pension cost (2,923) (2,923) 23,499
Designated 1eserve tor operations (8,810) (8,810) (6,480)
Othet non-operating items 181) - (181) 621
Total non-operating 22417 368 22,785 37424
Change in untestucted net assets 24,192 (1,226) 22966 38,714
Temporauly restucted
Gutfts and pledges - 1,076 1,076 876
Investment mcome - 1,241 1,241 98
Net assets teleased from testuctions - (1.331) (1.331) (999)
Change in temporauly testucted net assets - 986 986 675
Permanently testicted
Gutfts and pledges - 9 9 2
Change in petmanently testucted net assets - 9 9 2
CHANGE IN TOTAL NET ASSETS 24,192 (231) 23,961 39,391
Net assets at beginning ot year 17714 19,104 196,818 157427
Net assets at end of year $201,906 $18873 $220,°79 $196,818
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FUNCTIONAL DETAILS OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years ended August 31,
(In thousands)

Uniestricted
Operating

Revenues
Membership dues
Mecting tees
Advertusing
Gufts and grants
Publications
Royalties
Accreditation fees
Othet
Investment mcome for opeiations
Designated 1eserve tor operations
Net assets teleased from testuctions

Section service fees
Total operating tevenues

Expenses
Salaties, wages and benefits
Piofessional tees and services
Mectings and tiavel
Advertsing and matketing
Punting and publications
Facilities

General operations

Total operating expenses

Intettund intratund tiansters

Total operating expenses and tianstets

Excess operating tevenues over (undet) expenses

after transters

Non-operating and discontinued operations

Investment income and realized and untealized gamns

Pension changes other than net petiodic pension costs

Designated 1eserve tor operations

Othet Nnon-operatng 1tems

Total non-operating and discontinued opetations

Change in untestucted net assets

Temporauly testucted
Gutfts and pledges
Investment mcome

Net assets teleased from testuctions
Change in temporauly testucted net assets

Permanently restucted

Gutfts and pledges
Change in petmanently testucted net assets
CHANGE IN TOTAL NET ASSETS
Net assets at begmning of yeat

Net assets at end of year

2014
General 2013
opeLations Sections Grants gifts Consolidated Consolidated
$ 58,125 $ 13,788 $ $ 1913 $ 72,651
6,493 19,533 94 26,820 28,446
3,035 374 ) 3,409 3,299
16,581 6,149 35,617 58,347 60,571
3,698 343 135 11,176 11,969
128 1,555 91 8,774 870
3,889 54 -5 4,018 3,196
2087 291 106 2,484 2,856
5,839 1,454 - 7293 7,685
8,810 - - 8,810 6,480
48 - 1,283 1,331 999
342 342) -
116,075 50,199 38,101 204,375 206,022
73,050 9,723 12,818 95,591 96,314
8,83 2,756 14,299 25,892 23,976
8,778 22945 473 39,196 38,601
3,193 603 1 3,79” 3,216
5,383 o014 313 12,710 12,781
15,029 3,678 2,461 21,168 22,812
(3.676) 024 2,492 5,840 ~.032
110,594 53,743 39,857 204,194 204,732
941 (1.346) 405

111,535 52,397 40.262 204,194 204,732
4,540 (2,198) (2,161) 181 1,290
200,850 13,481 368 34,699 19,784
(2,923) - (2,923) 23,499
(8,810) - (8,810) (6,480)
162) 19) (181) 621
8,955 13,462 368 22.785 3”424
13,495 11,264 (1,793) 22,966 38,714
61 1,015 1,076 876

- 1,241 1,241 98
(48 I (1.283) (1.331) __(999)
13 973 986 675

- 9 9 2

- 9 9 2

13,508 11,264 (811) 23,961 39,391
79,036 98.326 19,456 196,818 157 427
$_92544 $109,590 $18,645 $220,779 $196,818

(o)
(9%
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ORGANIZATIONAL DATA

Year ended August 31, 2014

Assocuation data

Membership

Purpose

Nature ()fprmc1pzll activities

Officers Durmg 2013 - 2014
President
President - Elect
Immediate Past President
Chair, House of Delegates
Secretary
Treasurer
Executive Director

Established i 1878 as a voluntary not-for-profit assocration of the legal
profession, the ABA was incorporated effective December 7, 1992

Any person of good moral character 1n good standing at the bar of a state,
territory, or possession of the United States 1s eligible to be a member of the
ABA 1 accordance with the Bylaws  The Bylaws mayv specify classes of
members

The purposes of the ABA are to uphold and defend the Constitution of the United
States and mamtamn representative government, to advance the science of
jurssprudence, to promote throughout the nation the adminstration of justice
and the uniformuty of legslation and of judicial decisions, to uphold the honor
of the profession of law, to apply the knowledge and experience of the
profession to the promotion of the public good, to encourage cordial
mtercourse among the members of the ABA, and to correlate and promote the
activities of the bar organizations n the nation within these purposes and n
the interests of the profession and of the public

Admumstration of the ABA 1s to advance the science of jurisprudence and the
advancement of the public good, membership dues and other resources are
prmarily expended on professional, public service, and educational activities

James R Silkenat
William C Hubbard
Laurel G Bellows
Robert N Carlson
Cara Lee T Neville
Lucian T Pera

Jack L Ruves

Board of Governors Durmg 2013 - 2014

Ex-Officio members
First District
Second District
Third Dristrict
Fourth District
Fifth District

Sixth Dastrict
Seventh District
Eighth District
Nimnth District
Tenth District
Eleventh District
Twelfth District
Thirteenth District
Fourteenth District
Fifteenth District
Sixteenth District
Seventeenth District

The Ofticers

Joseph | Roszkowsk
Josephme A NcNeil
Thomas R Curtin
Allen C Goolsby, 111
Willtam Thomas Coplin
Robert L Rothman
Stephen E Chappelear
Eduardo Roberto Rodriguez
John § Skdton

Joseph B Bluemel
Jimmy Goodman
Thomas A Hamull
John C Schulte

Laura V' Farber
Kenneth G Standard
Timothy WX* Bouch
Paul T Moxley

o8]
9]
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Eighteenth Drstrict

Member-at-Large

Section

Members-at-Large

Mmority
Members-at-Large

Women
Members-at-Large

Young Lawyers
Members-at-Large

Law Student
Member-at-Large

Robert T Gonzales

Jodi B Levin

Charles A Colleer, Jr
Barbara Mendel Mavden
Kenneth X Gideon
Timothy B Walker
Pamela C Enslen
David Russell Poe

Harold D Pope
Michael E Flowers

Sandra R McCandless
Marcra Milby Rudings

Wiliam Ferreira
Michael Pellicciottt

James C Nanning
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Form 990, Part VII - Compensation of Officers, Directors,Trustees, Key Employees, Highest

Compensated Employees, and Inde

pendent Contractors

(A) (B) (©) (D) (E) (F)

Name and Title Average Position (do not check Reportable Reportable Estimated amount
hours per more than one box, unless compensation compensation of other
week (list person i1s both an officer from the from related compensation
any hours and a director/trustee) organization (W- organizations (W- from the
for related o= — 2 = |0 T | 2/1099-MISC) 2/1099-MISC) organization and

organizations ag_ 5 |=% T 25 |2 related
below == 2|8 |o %ﬁ E organizations
[ = -
dotted line) = = 3 [Z 5%
oo o 2 B
- g E o
= = o =
2 |2 |"|F
o % 7
B
@ T
[ul
James R Silkenat 45 00
X X 57,863 0 0
President 300
Wilham C Hubbard 60 00
X X 26,667 0 0
President Elect 100
Robert M Carlson 500
X X 0 0 0
Chair, House of Delegates 100
Cara Lee T Neville 30 00
X X 0 0 0
Secretary 100
Lucian T Pera 10 00
X X 0 0 0
Treasurer 100
Laurel G Bellows 500
X X 14,874 0 0
Immediate Past President 100
G Nicholas Casey Jr 500
X X 0 0 0
Treasurer-Elect 100
Mary T Torres 500
X X 0 0 0
Secretary-Elect 100
Joseph J Roszkowski 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Josephine A McNell 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Thomas R Curtin 7 00
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Allen C Goolsby 8 00
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Willam Thomas Coplin Jr 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Robert L Rothman 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Stephen E Chappelear 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Eduardo Roberto Rodriguez 7 00
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
John S Skilton 10 00
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Joseph B Bluemel 12 00
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Jimmy Goodman 9 00
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Thomas A Hamill 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
John C Schulte 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Laura V Farber 6 00
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Kenneth G Standard 9 00
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Timothy W Bouch 10 00
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Paul T Moxley 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
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Robert T Gonzales 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Jodi B Levine 10 00
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Charles A Collier Jr 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Barbara Mendel Mayden 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Kenneth W Gideon 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Timothy B Walker 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Pamela C Enslen 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
David Russell Poe 7 00
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Harold D Pope 8 00
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Michael E Flowers 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Sandra R McCandless 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Marcia Milby Ridings 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Michael Pellicciotti 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Willam Ferreira 500
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
James C Manning 10 00
X 0 0 0
Member-At-Large 100
Jack Rives 80 00
X 1,010,196 0 26,655
Executive Director 100
Lawrence Gill 47 00
X 491,712 0 36,028
Deputy Executive Director 300
Thomas Susman 40 00
X 345,969 0 15,274
Director, Government Liason 100
Jarisse Sanborn 65 00
X 336,744 0 10,224
General Counsel 100
James Swanson 40 00
X 338,498 0 21,326
Senior Director, DC Operations 100
Chris Gloede 55 00
X 307,653 0 26,584
Chief Marketing Officer 100
Manna Jacks 43 00
X 293,289 0 16,567
Associate Executive Director Policy Governance 500
Carol Stevens 40 00
X 246,786 0 23,114
Chief of Communications and Media Relations 100
H Mana Ennght 40 00
X 237,136 0 19,547
Senior Director Professional Services 100
Holly Cook 40 00
X 227,375 0 7,523
Director, DC Operations 100
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week (list person i1s both an officer from the from related compensation
any hours and a director/trustee) organization (W- organizations (W- from the
for related z = — 2 = |© T | 2/1099-MISC) 2/1099-MISC) organization and

organizations ag_ S |ZF (o 2|2 related
below == Z 2 o E‘ﬁ = organizations
g [ul = el = i
dotted line) [ = o=
a2 =) 2 lro
= = T =
e |F| |*| T
o % @
=3
- T
[u ]
Willam Pusey 40 00
X 204,628 0 38,207
Senior Director Editor and Publisher 100
Robert Rupp 40 00
X 175,671 0 15,804
Senior Director Publishing and CLE 100
Alpha Brady 52 00
X 170,654 0 10,859
Associate Executive Director - Public Service 100
Martin Balogh 50 00
X 177,331 0 15,594
Associate Executive Director - Meetings Travel 100
Dolores Gedge 40 00
X 206,302 0 23,112
Director of Planning 100
Robert Horowitz 30 00
X 209,073 0 6,610
Director, DC Professional Services 10 00
Jerry Kiska 50 00
X 198,773 0 13,639
Deputy CFO Controller 100
Laura Metzger 50 00
X 190,418 0 10,205
Division Director, Brand and Product Management 100
Terrence Brooks 40 00
X 186,804 0 19,909
Director, Division for Legal Services 100
Kathenne Wiley
X 140,365 0 1,988
Former Director, Human Resouces




